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INDORE SMARY CITY BEVELOPMENT 1D,
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 3 Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company
shall be held on Thursday, the 26™ day of September 2019 at 2.45 PM at the Registered Office of
the Company at Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, MP, 452003 to transact the

following business.

1. ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, coﬁsider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss of
the Company for the year ended 31% March, 2019 together with the Board’s Report &
Independent Auditor’s Report thereon.

_ Place: Indore By order of Board of Directors of
Date: 26.09.2019 Indore Smart City Development anted
Arfurag Kumar Saxena
Company Secretary
IFCS No.:8115
NOTE:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is cntitled to appoint a Proxy fo attend
and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a Member. Proxy in order to be
effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the Mecting,

2. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Statutory Register(s) are open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays

e between 11.00 A.M.to 1.00 P.M.

3. Member's desire of obtaining any information concerning Accounts and Operations of the
Company are requested to address their questions in writing to the Co'npany at least kiday
before the date of the Meet:ng .
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
- 3" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Folio No.

No. of shares(s} held

Name & Address of Registered

shareholder

1 certify that I/we am/are a registered shareholder / proxy for the registered

shareholder of the Company.

I hereby record my presence at the 3™ Annual General Meeting of the Company
convened on Thursday, the 26" day of September 2019 at
Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, MP, 452003,

....................................

Member's / Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.




e e

Form No. MGT-11

' Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companicg
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U75100MP2016SGC035528
Name of the Company: Indore Smart City Development Limited
Registered office: Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, MP, 452003

Name of the member (s);
Registered address:

Email 1D:
Folie No.:

I/'We, being the members of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name:

Address:
Email ID:

Signature: seresereesinneinieianinan,..,0F failing him

. Name:
Address;
Enail ID;

Signature: ............ seeeseaneeensesenOF failing him

. Name:
Address;
Email IT:

SIgnature: coeevireirvanierineeerannnn.

as my/our proxy to attend and vote-(on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 3"
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, the 26" day of|
September 2019 at Smart City Office, Nehirn Park Campus, Iudore, MP, 452003 and at
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No,

.................................................................................................

.................................................................................................

.................................................................................................

.........................................................................................

............................................................................................




G T L R BT o, 1

.....

......

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this......... day of .......... 2019,

Signature of sharcholdet(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

of the Meeting.

Notes:

FORTY-EIGHT hours before the meeting.
Al} alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed.
Please affix appropriate Revenue Stamp before putting signature.

In case of multiple proxies, proxy later in time shall be accepted.

©»oR W

A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and depositéd
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement

1. Proxy to be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not later than

e
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NOTICE is hereby given thai the adjourned 3% Awel General Meeting of the Meroars of the Company
shall be held at shorter notice on Saturday, th: 26" day of December 2020 ut 5.45 PM at the Registered
Office of the Company at Sinart City Office. Nehri Fark Carmpus, [ndere. MP, 4352003 through video
conferencing to transact th2 following business. The meeting link is: meet. gooyle.com. sdp-uedr-bes

I. ORDINARY BUSINZSS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Auditec Balance Sheet and Statement of Protit & Loss of the

Company for the year ended 3™ March, 2019 together with the Board’s Report & [ndependent
Auditor’s Report with comments from Comptrotier and Auditor-General of India thereon.

Place: Indore By order of Board of Direciors of
Date: 26.12.2020 Indore Smart City Development Limited

Anurag Kumar Saxena
Company Seeretary
FCS No81s

NOTE:

I. The Comptroiler and Auditor-General of India (C&AG) vide its order No. CA. V/COY/ MADHYA
PRADESH, ISCDL (1¥1371 dated 22.08.2019, had appointed M/s Gupta and Ashok, Chartered
Accountants of Indore as Statutory Auditor of the Company for financial year 2019-20 at
Remuneration of Rs, 50,000/, in terms of Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,

2. A member has option to attend meeting physically or through OAVM. A member entitled to attend
and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy and vote on a poll instead of himself and proxy need not be a
member of the Company but the members who are attending the meeting through the Video
Conferencing or other Audio Visual Means are not eligible to appoint the meeting through proxy.

.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT E‘(CEEING FIFTY (30
AND HOLDING IN AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. A MEMBLR HOLDING MORE THAN TEN (10
PERCENT OF THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS
MAY APPOINT ONE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS
PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR MEMBER. )
4, PROXIES I[N ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE LODGED &
INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY.
5. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in thelr addresses to the Company at its
Registered Office.

6. Members ¢ Proxies shouid hring duiv tilled Artendanca Siip to atend the Annual Gererai Meeting.

THE COMPA THE




10.

Corporate Members intending 10 send their avtnorsed representative o atiend the meeting are
requested to serd to the Company certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative to atrend and vote on their behaif at the meeting,

Relevant documents referred to in the accorpanying rotice and the. >tate|rcm is open for inspection
by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, during business hours
up to the date of the meeting,

An explanatory statement pursuant fo section |02 of the Companies Act, 2013 is given below and
forms part of this notice.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is to be a pre-
requisite and pursuant to the Circular No. 142026 daied April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, physical attendance of the Members to the EGM venue is optional. Memibers can

attend and participate in the ensuing Annual Gereral Meeting though VC/OAYM.

. The Members can join the Annual Geaeral Mesting in the VC/OAYM mode |3 minutes before and

atter the scheduled sime of the commencement of the Mes=ting by foliowing the procvedure mentioned
in the Notice,

Tie attendane of the Members aending e Armual Gereral Meeting rougn vV COAVM will oe

counied for the Juross of rechaoni Ay U e U L der Seotion 1733 o the uﬂl“[" Ly AL 2005

A documanis referred to in the Notice calling the Annual General Meeting are attached herswith

alorg with the notice,

CAnnual General Meaeting has hesn convened through VCOOAVM in compliance with appiicable

provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 read wirth MCA Circular No. 142020 dated April 98,
2020 and MCA Circular No. 1772020 dated April 3. 2020 and virgular o, 20/2020 dated May 3,
2020.

. During the mesting held through Video Conterencing and any other Audio Visual Facility, where a

poll on any item is required, the members shall cast their vote on the resolution only by sending the
email addresses which are registered with the company, The said emails shall only be sent to the
designated email address circuiated by the company in advance.

. In case the counting of voted required time, the said meeting may be adjourned and called later to

declare the result.

L R kY EE




FOAD

LS

;

IR NN EENE ISR ISR AR IR RN NN ) Lbald Ll 2 o0y ey g by vy el

LALALBLIL B LU L 0 0 I 0 0 e S e o LIRS

T B

ATE
AIA0

-E

oty

B POFFCE

o il



U T

P N

“{ Grant Tr. ansterred to Profit & Loss Statcment

INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT LTV,
Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, M.B., 452043

Ph. No.: 131-2535572; E-mall: smartcityindorel6@gmail.com

CIN: UTS100MP2016SCCO35528; Website: wwivsmarteityindore.org

Board’s Report

To,
‘Fhe Members,
Indore Smart City Development anted,

Indore

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 3™ Board's Report together with the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 3 1™ March, 2019;

{. STATE OF AFFAIR, FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

) FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Financial Results for the year ended 31% March 2019 have been summarized as under:

_{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

Uther lncome

Current

Previous

| Othets 444 1';'éli" | 1,08559

{“Total expetise incurred towards the administrative expense mef | 882.85 1029.01
out from the grant received
Profit/luss l;:fﬁil‘bwwdmg Depreciation and lntme«';t 1 449, 47 T
"_l_.égé_ﬁéﬁrtégigt_ibﬁ ....... S - P | 422 it Soiss
Interest e ) T 0.57

' Plof_' Yioss after depreciation ] 1 N 0 (s 19)
Less: Exceptional Rem N N 0 Om '

[ TLews Brmerdivary om ) Y ]
Less: Current Tox ] ) I
“Less: Deferred Tax o B 397.17 152.12
Drofit /Loss after taxation I . (397. 1_':7) (26831

The Company has prepared its accounts under Ind AS as required by u;’s 133 of the Companics Act
2013, hence certain adjustments have been made considering thé requirements under’ Tndian Accounting
Standards, The figures for the previous year have also been rearranged as required by Indian Accounting -

Standards.




iiy OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW

- The Company was formed as SPV under the Smart City Mission of Government of India to develop the

! Indore City as Smart City by overali development of city in terms of Heritage, Spiritual, Infrastructure,
Transportation, Solid Waste Management, Education and Technological Smart Solution in day to day
activities of resident.

The overall performance of the Company towards the development of the project seems to be improving
and towards its main object of the company, The Company has taken up projects defined in Smart Ciry
Proposal under SCM, Convergence and PPP mode. Some of the projects have also been completed and
projects undergoing are running in foll swings. As per Central MIS Ranking for all 100 Smart Cities of
India, the Company ranked at 9™ position as on 13.09.2019,

The Company, on its part has taken various initiatives to improve its operating efficiency and revenue
earning potential to bring profitability of Company. Your Directors are committed to take stringent
measures to ensure Company’s success in this challenging Smart City Mission. The Company is in the
process of implementing strategies to capitalize available opportunities,

iii} TRANSFER TO RESERVES \H'.
The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the year under review.
iv) DIVIDEND
" Due to requirement of funds for ongoing projects and to strengthen the capital base of the Company,
your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019,
| v) CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS -
During tt e year under review there was no change in business activity of the Company.
vi) MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT
. No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred —

between the ends of the financial year to which this financial statement relate, on the date of this report.
2. CAPITAL AN}) DEBT STRUCTURE
i) CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s Authorized Share Capital is Rs, 200.00 Crore since its inception date, as required under
Directions issued by Urban Administration and Development Department, GoMP, Bhopal through its




-

letter dtd. 02.02,2016. During the previous Financial Year 2017-18 the Company had raised its Paid-up
Share Capital upto Rs. 200.00 Crore, which is equivalent to Authorized Share Capital.

Hence, during the financial year under review no such change in capital structure of the Company and
there are no outstanding shares issued with differential rights.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES

The Company does not have issued Sweat Equity Shares pursuant to provisions of Section 54 read with
Rule 8 of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014) during the Financial Year under

review.

iif) DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

i)

The Company does not issued shares under Employee’s Stock Options Scheme pursuant to proviéi_ons
of Section Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014).

MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Changes hy Directors:-

During the financial year 2018-19, Shri Asheesh Singh, 145 has joined the Board as Executive Director
of the Company w.e.f. 18.05.2018, The appointment of Shri Rahul Jain, J4S and Shri Swatantra Kumar
Singh, IAS was done w.e.f. 16.07.2018 and 12.11.2018 respectively as Nominee Directors of the
Company. Ar, Smt. Deepti Vyas was appointed as Independent Director of the Company w.elf.
12.11.2018. Shri Lokesh Kumar Jatav, I4S was appointed as Chairman of the Company w.e.f,

07.03.2013,

During the year under review, Shri Knmar Purushottam joined the Board as Nominee Director w.e.f.
17.07.2018 and ceased to hold Directorship of Company w.e.f. 28.01.2019.

Shri Manish Singh, 145, Shri Surendra Singh Rajpoot, Dr. Manju Sharma, Shri Gautam Singh, /48, Shri
Nishant Warwade, I4S ceased to hold Directorship of Company we.f. 18.05.2018, 16.07.2018,
16.07.2018, 17.07.2018 and 15.01.2019 respectively.

Apart from that, the office of Shri Krishina Kumar Songaria was vacated u/s 167 of the Companies Act
2013 w.e.f. 01.04.2018 and he was further re-appointed as Nominee Director w.ef. 15.06.2018. The
office of Shri Ashwini Kumar was also vacated w/s 167 of the Companies Act 2013 w.e.f. 20,12.2018.

During the running financial year 2019-20, Shri Rajesh Nagal ceased to hold Directorship in the
Company w.e.f. 11.04.2019 and i his place Shri Shiv Kant Mudgal was appointed as Nominee Director
of the Company. Shri Krishna Kumar Songaria ceased to hold Directorship w.e.f. 11.04.2019 and Shri

3




Deepak Ratnawat joined the Board in his place w.e.f. 11.04.2019 as Nominee Director. Shri Vivek .

Shotriya joined the ISCDL Board as Nominee Director w.e.f. 01.07.2019. Shri Gajra Mehta cessed to )
- hold Directorship in the Company w.e.f. 05.08.2019 and in his place Shri Sanjay Mohase was appointed

as Nominee Director of the Company. Shri Ashwini Kumar is re-appointed as Nominee Director wef,

09.08.2019.

The Appointment/cessation from directorship of Company for Representative of Central Govemnment
are done in compliance of orders issued by MoHUA, Gol, New Delhi and other changes in Board of
ISCDL are done after obtaining approval/consent from M/s Madhya Pradesh Urban Development Co. <

Limited (the ‘Holding Company®).

The Company has also placed the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors. This Code is a guide to
professional conduct for Independent Directors. Independent Director adhere these standards and
fulfilled their responsibilities in a professionat and faithful manner.

Changes in KMPs:-

During the Financial Year 2018-19, Chief Executive Officer of the Company Shri Rohan Saxena has -
been transferred and deputed as CEO, Jila Panchayat, Burhanpur and pursvant to Order of
Commissioner, Indore Municipal Corporation, Indore issued on 23.03.2019 Shri Sandeep Kumar Soni, -
Additional Commissioner, IMC, Indore posted and joined the Company as Chief Exccutive Officer of

1SCDL.

During the running Financial Year 2019-20, Mrs, Aditi Garg, /4S5 has been posted as CEO, ISCDL vide
GAD, GoMP Order No. E-1, 282/2019/5/0One Bhopal dated 24.06.2019. She has joined and taken over
charge of CEO from former CEO, Shri Sandeep Kumar Soni on 25.06.2019. Mrs. Aditi Garg, I4S is
also appointed as Key Managerial Personnel of ISCDL in terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Shri Anurag Kumar Saxena who was appointed as Company Secretary as well as Key Managerial
Personnel. of the ISCDL in terms of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 for a period of 3 years we.f.
02.09.2016 which was expired on 01,09.2019. In the Board Meeting held on 14.06.2019 the Board
expressed their consent for renewal of contract tenure of Shri Anurag Kumar Saxena for further term of
3 years at same terms and conditions of existing Contract Agreement for Appointment of Full Time
Company Secretary dtd, 02.09.2016. : —

In the previous Financial Year, Smt, Rachana Gaur was appointed as Chief F inancial Officer as well as
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company w.e.f, 29.09.2017.

Except above there was no change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. As
Section 152(6) is not applicable on Government Company hence no such Director is liable for

retirement by rotation.
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The Board Composition and changes during Financial Year 2018-19 and running Financial Y ear 2019-
20 are summarized as below:-

Representing Dote of Changes during F.X. Changes durlug raaning
Departent | Desiguafion Numeof | Appointmeni 2018-19 F.Y, 2019-20 ‘Present
i andlor miSCOL | Director/kMP | befors FY. _ ; _ Composition
Designation 018-10 | onointment | Effective | Appotunment | Effective
"/ Cessntion Date £ Cessatlon Dafe
- ) | Meminee Shri Ashwini | 14-09-2017 { Cessation 20-12- - - T
Representative | Director Kumar 20138 [
of the Centeal | A - |“Appointment | 69.082019 | Shei Ashwini
v Government . _ i Kumar
DR Nominee | Shri Surendra | 14-102016 | Cessation | 16:07= | - B -
Representatives | Direcior Singh Rajpeot | 2018
°,f the  State “Shri Swatenirs | - Appointment 1z~ - T Shii
Government o7 Kumar  Singh 2018 Swatantea
the State . (IAS) , : ' Kumar Singh
Government .
Underiaking - : ~ . , . S (I_AS)
Dr, Smt, } t8-12-2017 Cessation .} 16-07- - - -
st Manju Sharma o 2018 :
Shri Rahuf Jain | - Appointment | [607- - - Siri” Rahu! |
: (1AS} _ 2018 - _ | Jain (1AS)
¢} District -t Chairman Shri  Mishant | 18-09-2017 | Cessation §5-01- - - -
Coliector Warwade 2000
(1AS) -
Shri  Lokesh | - Appointiucat | 07-63- - . Slwi  Lukesh
Kumar  Jutav § 2019 Kumar Jalav
) - (IAS) - ' (1AS)
1™ “Municipal | Executive | Shei | Manish | 11-03-2016 | Cessation 18-035- . - -
Comemissioner, | Directer ] Siogh§AS) | 12018 1 '
Indare - Shri Asheesh | - Appointment | 18-05- . e - Shyi Asheesh
Municipal 1 Singh (IAS) 1 - 218 Singh (AS)
mer[:omtion PR T -
B) Chief | Nominee Shri” Gaotam | 20:02.2017 | Cessation 17:07- | - . T
| Ewecutive Director Singh (IAS) ) o ~} 2018 N
Officer, Indore Shyi - Appointmant | {7-07- . - I
1 Development : Purgshottam | 12018
Aulhority Kuniar . Cessation 28-0i- . e .
| | 2019 . o
Shri  Vivek | - S - Y Appointment | 01-97-2019 | Shri  Vivek
| . Sarotriya . | R - Sarotriya
. 1) Joint Director, | Nominee Shri  Rajesh | 16092006 |- - 1 Cessation , 114042019 | -
Indore, Director Nagal N » .
Directorate  of . Shri Shiv Kant | - . . Appointment | 11-042019 | 8hei™  Shiv |
Town & Mudgat i Kant Mudgal
Couniry ' : :
Plansing,
GoMP : ) 1 . ) ) )
)] Chief'| Nominee Shri Gyjea [ 16-09-2016 | - T~ Cessation 05.03.201% | -
Engineer, Director Mehia :
Madhya Pradesh
Pashchim




Represeniing Date of Changes during F.¥. Changes during ranning
Depariment Designation Nameof | Appoiniment 2018-19 FY.2009-29 . Present
andior in1SCDL | Direcior/KMP | before R Y, _ _ .| Composition
Designation ) ' 2018-19 i Appoiniment Eﬂ'wive A Appoimusens | Effecive
-/ Cessation Dure £ Cossation Dive
Kshetelya Siif | Sanjay | = . N Appoiatment | 95.08.2019 | Shii  Sanjay |
Vidyut Vitaran Mohase ohiase
Company
Limited r.. 1 | IR D R N
5} Chief | Nominee | Shri Krishng | 26-09-2016 | Cessalion P10 |« - LT
Eagineer, Public § Direstor Kumar 2018
Health and | | Songaria _ )
. Englueering : . Appoiniment § 15-06- | Cessation 11-04-2019 | «
Departraent : ] ) 2018 ) )
Shri  Deepak | - - - Appointment | 11-04-2019 | She  Deopak
............. . Ratnawal . Ramnawat
‘B Nominee of § Nominee Shei Shankar | 19-12-2016 | - < . - " Shri Shankar |
Mayor of [ndore | Director Yaday " Yaday
Muaicipal
Corporation T
'j) Independent § independent | Prof. Shri | 12-05-2017 [« . - - Prof  Shii
Diceclor ‘I Director | Rishikesha ' Rishikesha
: ’ | Thiruvenkata Thiruvenkata
1 Krishnan } —— _ N o . Krishnan
1 Independent § Ar. Smt. | - Appointment | 12-11- ' * Ar. Sml.
Director Deepli Vyuos 2038 Deepti- Vyas
1210.A7 Clief {.CBO (KMPY | Shri  Rohan | 27083016 | Cessation 303 |- B R T
Excealive Saxena 1. : 12019 . . _
| Offices { S Sandecp | - Appointment | 23-03- | Cessation | 25-082000 | -
' Kumar Soné 1 12019 ;
TSmi. Aditi | - : . T Appointment | 25-06-2019 | Smt.  Aditi
o ) Garg (IAS) . - Gareg (IAS)
“T270.8)  Chief | CFO (KFP} |. Smt. Ruchana | 29-092017 . - . Smt, Rachana
Financtal " Gaur ' Gour
Ofticer . . SN WU T N .
115000 T CS ®MP) T Sk Anurag | 02082086 | - - . X Shri Anurag
Compuny | Kumar Saxena . Kumar
Secrciary . . Saxena

i) INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR/S

The Company is required to appoint minimum pumber of Independent Directors in the Board for
. compliance with the Companies Act 2013, Presently Company has two Independent Directors. Prof. Shri
Rishikesha Thiruvenkata Krishnan was appointed w.e.f. 12.05.2017 and Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas had
Jjoined the Board w.e.f. 12.11.2018 as Independent Directors. '

Prof. Shri Rishikesha Thiruvenkata Krishnan is alumnus of IIT Kanpur, Stanford Academy and IIT
Ahmedabad. He was visiting scholar to University of Pennsylvania. He was listed among the Thikner50
India most influential thinker in management (year 2013). He was member of various committees of
Government of India, NASSCOM and CII. He is Professor of Strategy, Indian Institute of Management




Bangalore. His good experience, vision and background shall contribute for the smast city project and

progress of the Company.

Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas is a practicing Architect Registered with Council of Arch itecture, India, M. Tech.
in Town Planning from Sardar Patel University, Gujrat, an ECBC Architect empanelled with Byreau of
Energy Efficiency (BEE), Govt. India and a Government Registered Valuer under Wealth Tax Act. She
is having experience of 26 ‘years in the fields of planning and Architect. She has Certificate of
Entrepreneur programme from Indian Schoo! of Business (ISB), Hyderabad and also having
Membership of many institutes and societies. She had worked Joint Secretary of Institute of Town
Planners, M.P. Regional Chapter, Bhopal, Councii Member of Institute of Town Planners, M. P,
Chapter, Bhopal & Indian Institute of Architects, M.P. Chapter and Hon. Secretary, Indian Institute of
Architect MP. Chapter. Under the Smart City Project, Planning is the one of the core infrastructure
element and being an Architect, Smt. Deepti Vyas is valuable source of inputs in smart city mission,

© {ii) STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors of the company confirming that |

he/she meet the criteria of independence under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act.

iv) DISQUALIFICATIONS OF DIRECTORS

During the year declarations were received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 164
of the Companies Act, 2013. Board appraised the same and found that none of the Director is
disqualified for holding office as director. Although Section 164(2) is not applicabie on Company as per
Gazetie Notification did, 05.06.2015.

DETAILS OF BOARD MEETING(S)

During the year under review Three (3) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 29.06.2018,
29.09.2018 and 20.12.2018 and in respect of which proper notices were given and proceedings were
properly recorded in Minutes Book. The details of Board Meetings are as follows:-
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. No. of Board Attendance gi e | ’
IS\; . Director Meetz‘ngs pr "-"’;‘;z ;?:;;::; ’G;;Wm!
-] . Held | Attended 1 29.12.2018 {(Adjourned)
1| ShriNishant Warwade, IAS I 3 No T
2| Shri Lokesh Kumar Jatav, IAS 10 0 NA T
- 3 | Shri Manish Singh, IAS 0 0 NA
~ 4 | Shri Asheesh Singh, IAS 3 3 Yes ]
5 | *Shri Ashwini Kumar B 0 NA T B
"6 | Shri Surendra Singh Rajpoot 1 0 B 7
7 | Shri Swatantra Kumar Singh i 0 " TNo o
§ | Dr. Manju Sharma T NA
9 | Shri Rahul Jain, TAS 2 o | No
10 | Shei Gautam Singh, IAS T 0 NA
11 | Stri Kumar Purushottam 2 2 No
12 | Shri Rajesh Nagal 3 1 No
13 | Shri Gajra Mehta 32 No ~
14 | Shri Krishna Kumar Songaria 3 0 T No
15 | Shri Shankar Yadav 3 0 No
16 | Prof. Shri Rishikesha Thiruvenkata Krishnan | 3 2 No
17 | Ar, Smt. Deepti Vyas 1 t No
18 | *Shri Shiv Kant Mudga! -1 . -
19 | *Shri Deepak Ratnawat - ST -
20 | *Shri Vivek Shrotriya T
21 | *Shri Sanjay Mohase . _

*Note: Shri Shiv Kant Mudgal, Shri Deepak Ratnawat, Shri Vivek Shrotriya and Shri Sanjay Mohase

are appointed during the financial year 2019-20 in place of Shri Rajesh Nagal, Shri Krishna Kumar
| Songaria, Shri Kumar Purushottam and Shri Gajra Mehta respectively. Shri Ashwini Kumar is re-
appointed as Director w.e.f 09.08.2019, |

Resofution(s) by Circulation: During the financial year under review and running financial year,

following Board/Committee Resolution(s) were proposed and passed by majority of Board/Committee “
Members by way of “Resolution by Circulation” under Section 175 of the Companies Act, 2013, which

were also discussed / recorded in Board/Comnmiittee Committee Meeting(s) held thereafter:-

Financial | Sr. . Board 7 Conunittee Date of
Year No. Boarrl/Cfo :_’_”mee Resolution _ Resolution No. Approv‘gt '
3018-19 | 1 | Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Resolution | CSRCR-01/2018-19 | 25.09.2018
{7201819 |2 | Board Resolution CBR-01/2018-19 }26,09.2018
'2018-19 | 3 | Board Resolution | "CBR-02/2018-19 | 14.02.2019
______ 2018-19 | 4 | Board Resolution 1 CBR-03/2018-19 |14.02.2019
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] "2018-19 | 5 | Board Resolution ~ T CBR04/2018-19 | 14022019
2018-19 | 6 [ Board Resolution CBR-05/2018-19 | 14022019
2018-19 | 7 | Board Resolution | CBR-02/2018-19 | 14,02.2019
2018-19 | 8 | Board Resolution 1 CBR-06/2018-19 | 297032019
2018-19 | 9 | Board Resolution T CBR07/2018-19 | 29703.2019
201920 | 10 | Board Resolution CBR-01/2019-20 | 29.05.2019
7201920 | 11 | Board Resolution CBR-02/2019-20 | 29.05.2019
2019-20 | 12 | Board Resolution CBR-03/2019-20 | 29.052019

vi) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company is required to constitute Audit Committee under Section 177 (1) of Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Company has constituted

Audit Committee in the Board Meeting held on 16.11.2017 with one Independent Director and two Nen- -

executive Directors. The Audit Committee was re-constituted by Board on 20.12.2018 with the
following Board Members:-

;f,;" Name of Director Category DIN C;:;;::::: 4

1 Prof Shri Rishikesha | Independent Director 700064067 | Chairman
Thiravenkata Krishnan _

2 | Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas ‘ “Independent Director 08277439 Membe_f """"""

'3 | Shri Rajesh Nagal | Non-executive Director 07084452 | Member

Further, due to transfer of some Directors and appointment of new Directors in their places, the
reconstitution of Audit Committee was required. Consequently, the Audit Committee was re-constituted
by majority of Board Members by way of passing “Resolution by Circulation” under Section 175 of the

Companies Act, 2013 on 29.05.2019 with the following Board Members:-

vi) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

S, | X ' - " Chairman/
No. Name of Director : Category | | I?IN Member
1 Prc?f. Shri Rishikesha Thiruvenkata “Independent Director 00064067 Chairman
Krishnan o U N —
12 | Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas Independent Director 08277439 | Member
3 | Shri Shiv Kant Mudgal Non-executive Director 07669930 Member

The Company is not required to constitute Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted on 16.11.2017 with

the following Board Members:-

Sr. | T Clmfrman./
|po|  NameorDircor | Cmegoy | PV | pemser
+ 1 | Shri Gajra Mehta ‘Non-executive Director 07578666 | Chairman
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1 2 | Shei Rajesh Nagal _ _ngfg_xecutive Director 070_3_4452 Member | | -
3 Prof, Shri Rishikesha Thituvenkata ' :
Krishnan

' Independent Director 00064067 Member

Further, due to transfer of some Directors and appointment of new Directors in their places, the
reconstitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee was required. Consequently, the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee was re-constituted by majority of Board Members by way of passing
“Resolution by Circulation” under Section 175 of the Companies Act, 2013 on 29.05.2019 with the
following Board Members:-

St - | : Chairman/
N of Directo Cat. DI
Mo, ame of Director | Coegoy | PNV | Member
| 1 |ShriGgjraMehta _ Non-executive Director | 07578666 | Chairman
, | Prof. Shri Rishikesha Thiravenkata o dent Director 00064067 | Member
Krishnan _ RN
3 jArSmt Deepti Vyas | Independent Director | 08277439 | Meinber

The Non-executive Director, Shri Gajra Mehta has been transferred and in his place, Shri Sanjay
Mohase has been appointed as Nominee Director in Board of ISCDL w.e.f. 05.08.2019. Consequently,
the Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been re-constituted with the following Board Members,

A _ , O i F T T
No.- N{xnre qf Dinj’f'lor . Caregor)i R D N Member
1| Shri Sanjay Mohase N?n-executsve 07092076 Chairman
SU S . | Director _ I DU
12 Pn:'af'. Shri. Rishikesha Thiruvenkata Independent Director | 00064067 Member
KrIShnan .. T A e S R P - e e e e e
'3 L Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas L Independent Director | 08277439 Member

viii) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company is required to constitute Nomination and Remuneration Committee under Section 178(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,

2014.

The Company has constitutgd its Nomination and Remuneration Committee in the 14" Board Meeting -
held on 20.12.2018 with the following Board Members:- :

i:;‘ Name of Direcior : Category ' DIN Ck;;z f;zi” /
"1 | Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas " | Independent Director | 08277439 | Chairperson
2 | Prof. Shri Rishikesha Thiruvenkata | Independent Director 100064067 Member
Krishnan _
'''''' 3 | Shri Rajesh Nagal " Nom-executive Director | 07084452 | Member
10




Further, due to transfer of some Directors and appointment of new Directors in their places, the
reconstitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was required. Consequently, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee was re-constituted by majority of Board Members by way of
passing “Resolution by Circulation” under Section 175 of the Companies Act, 2013 on 29.05.201% with

the following Board Members:-

;:. Name of Director Category | DIN C‘k;{;z:;.zn /. |
1 1 Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas | Independent Director - 08277439 | Chairperson |

: Prof. Shri Rishikesha . _ ” T . ~=j

| .2 Thiruvenkata Krishnan ‘ Independent. Director 0006406?; M_ember

3 | Shri Deepak Ratnawat [ Non-executive Director 07640768 ¥

ix) DETAILS OF COMMITTEE(S) MEETINGS

The Members of Audit Committee were duly met three (3) times during the financial year under review
on 10.10.2018, 17.10.2018 (Adjourned Meeting) and 20.12.2018 and 08.03.2019. The details of such
Committee Meeting and Members attendance therein are as follows:-

b:'r _ No. of " No. of Commaittee
N‘;. _ Name of Cominittee Member | Committee Meetings Aftended
I ) N o | Meetings Held | (Physically/Electronically)
1 | Prof. Shri Rishikesha Thiravenkata Krishnan E ' 3
2" | Shri Rajesh Nagal ' 3 2
3| Shri Gajra Mehta 2 .
4 | Ar. Smt. Deopti Vyas R T -

The Members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were duly tet one (1) time during the
financial year under review on 08.03.2019. The details of such Committee Mecting and Members

attendance therein are as follows:-

No. of No. of Committee

}f; Name of Commitice Member Conumnittee | Meetings Attended
) Meetings Held | (Physically/Electronically)
1 | Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas 1 i i
2| Prof. Shri Rishikesha Thiruvenkata Krishnan _ 1 I _
"3 | Shri Rajesh Nagal ' ' 1 0 '

The Members of Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee were duly met one (1) time during the financial
year under review on 08.03.2019. The details of such Committee Meeting and Menbers attendance

therein are as follows:-

11
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x} RECOMMENDATION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

xi)

T e i

: No. of No. of Commmee Meetings
Sr. Name of Commiittee Member Conmitiee Attendecy
Ne. _ ; Meetings Held | (Pipsically/Electronically)
1| Shri Gajra Mehta 1 0 '
"2 | Shri Rajesh Nagal T 1 YT
3 | Prof. Shri Rishikesha Thlruvenkata Krishnan 1 1 ;""' —

The Independent Directors were duly met one time during the financial year uader review on
08.03.2019. The details of such Meeting and Directors attendance therein are as follows:-

Sr. o " No. of No. of Meetings Attended
N, Name of Iudependen! Directors Meetings Held ({f{;ySdefW/Efecff;'ﬂf“ii‘fff&’) :
1 Prof. Shri Rislnkesha Thiruvenkata Krishnan I ' |
2 ] Ar. Smt. Deepti Vyas T 1

The Board always honored the views of Audit Committee given on any agenda item and there was no
subject matter on which Board not accepted Audit Commiitee recomimendation.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD

Being as Government Company, not required to carry formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own
performance and that of its committees and individual directors pursuant to Section 134 (3} (p) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Although, Directors of
the Company are vigilant towards their duties and responsibilities as Director of the Company,

xii) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the Employee of the Company is drawing remuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One
Crore and Two Lakh) per annum or more if employed throughout the Financial Year or Rs. 8,50,000/-
(Rupees Eight Lakh and Fifty Thousand) per month if employed for a part"of the Financial Year.
Further, also that none of the Employee was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the
Managing Director or Whole-time Director or Manager (wherever they are appointed), and does not
hold by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, 2(two) percent or more equity shares
of the Conipany. Further, that the mentioned disclosure is for the employees other than Directors of the
Company and details regarding Directors have been given in ‘Form No.-MGT-9” which is annexed as

Annexure-I with this report.

i) REMUNERATION/COMMISSION _RECEIVED BY DIRECTORS FROM HOLDING

During the year under review none of the &irector of the company in receipt of the commission or
remuneration from holding company of the company, if any as provided under Section 197 (14) of

Companies Act, 2014,

12
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xiv) DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Xy}

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) your Directors
confirm that: _

{a)In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31* March, 2019, the applicable .
PP

accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

(b)The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company

for that period;

{¢)The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going coacern basis;

(¢) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively;

(f) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

Explanation: For the purposes of this clause, the term “Internal Financial Controls™ means the policies
and procedures adopted by the company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
prepacation of reliable financial information, '

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The internal control system with respect 10 financial statement and there adequacy has been duly taken -

care by the Board of Directors of the Company. The internal controls exist in the system and that
sufficient measures are taken to update the internal control system, as and when needed. The system

also ensures that all transaction are appropriately authorized, recorded and reported as and when

required.

xvi) REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS
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9.

IS R e i TR e L e S TR e T

There was no fraud in the Company, which was required fo report by Auditors (Statutory Auditor or
Secretarial Auditor) of the Compaiy to the Audit Committee/Board under sub-section (12) of section
143 of Companies Act, 2013,

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND JOINT VENTURE
The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company, Joint Venture or Associate Company. Although,
the Company is a Subsidiary Company of M/s Madhya Pradesh Urban Development Co. Limited in
termns of Scction 2(87)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013,

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73 of the -
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the year under review your Company has not provided loans/guarantees and made investments -
in terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, if any.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions entered by Company which falls under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 are already forming part of Financial Statements, kindly refer to notes to the accounts attached
with the Financial Statements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS
The Company is not required to provide statement on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section

134(3) of the companies Act, 2013. As the Company does not fall under the criteria provided under
Section 135 (1) of Companies Act, 2013, therefore no such committee was constituted.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION ANDP FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO

1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The company is putting continues efforts to reduce the consumption of energy and maximum
possible saving of energy.

b. Tle steps taken by the company for ufilizing alteruate sources of encrpy-
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The Company has vsed alternate source of energy, whenever and to the extent possible

The capital iiivestment on energy. conservation equipments- NIL

C.

2) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

a. the effort made towayds techuolog y-absorption-

No specific activities have been done by the Company.

b. the benefits dervived like product improvement, cost reduetion, product development or
import substitution-

No specific activity has been done by the Company

c. in case of imported technology imperted during the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year;- NA

d. the expenditure incurred on Research & Development.- NEL

3) TFOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There are no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgoings were taken place during the financial year as
required by Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

10. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT & IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors of the Company state that risk associated i the ordinary course of business is
duly taken care by the Board while taking business decisions, Further the Company need not required to
formulate any specified risk management policy.

11. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM

Your company does not meet the requirements of Section 177(9) of Companies Act, 2013 read with
rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules for establishing Vigil Mechanism, -
therefore no such mechanism was established by the Board,

12, SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals impacting the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations. Although, some cases related to allotment of
tenders for ‘Infrastructure Upgradation and Improvement for Commuter safety on percentage rate
contract basis under the Smart City Mission® and Underground cabling works with Compact type sub~
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station for selected Major roads and Market surrounding Rajwada area’ are pending with counts. The
judgment has been given for Smart Pole Project including CCTC, Environmental censors, Wi-fi, C4
integration, OFC ete. :

13. AUDITORS

Mis Gupta and Ashok, Chartered Accountants of Indore is appointed as Statatory Auditor of the
Company for financial year 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19 by virtue of Orders of Comptroller and
Auditor-General of India (C&AG) issued from time to time for appointment of Statutory Auditor and
their remuneration.

The Comptroller and Anditor-General of India (C&AG) vide its order No. CA. V/COY/MADHYA
PRADESH, ISCDL(1)/1371 dated 22.08.2019, has appointed M/s Gupta and Ashok, Chartered
Accountants of Indore as Statutory Auditor of the Company for financial year 2019-20, in terms of
Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s Gupta and Ashok, Chartered Accountants have also .
given their consent to act as Statutory Auditor of the Company under Section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2019-20.

Mi/s P,S. Tripathi & Associates, Company Secretaries, Indore arc appointed Secretarial Auditors of the ~
Company for 3 years w.e.f. 01.09.2016 and their service tenure has been extended by Board in its 15"

meeting held on 14.06.2019 for further term of 3 years in terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Rule 9 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules 2014,

During the financial year 2018-19, M/s M. Mehta and Company, Chartered Accountants, Indore are
appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for 2 years w.e.f. 16.08.2018 in terms of Section 138 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

14, SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Requirements of the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the
Companics (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are applicable to
the Company. A Report from M/s P.S. Tripathi & Associates, Company Secretaries, Indore the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company has been received for the FY 2018-19. The Secretarial Audit Report -
as attached Anuexure-II, has following qualifications (cited in Point No. 1 of the Report), which are
explained below:-

{a) Company was having only one independent Director from 01* April, 2018 to 11™ November, 2018
against the two independent Directors required as per section 149 of the Companies Act 2013,

Board Explanation: Appointment of Mrs. Deepti Vyas was done on 12.11.2018 as 2™ Independent
Director in terms of Article no. 12(1)()(j) of Articles of Association of the Company. The Company
has two Independent Directors and the observation is duly complied as on today.

(b)Company is not constituted Nomination and Remuneratlon Committee consisting majority of
Independent Directors from 01% April, 2018 to 19" November, 2018. Audit committee also did not
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N had majority of Independent Director from 01 April, 2018 to 19" November, 2018 as required
under the Companies Act 2013, However above were complied on 19.11.2018.

Board Explanation: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on 20.12.2018
with majority of Independent Directors. Similarly Audit Committee had also been re-constituted
with majority of Independent Directors on same date. The Company has constituted committees with
two Independent Directors and the observation is duly complied as on today.

(c) Meeting of Board of Directors has not been held in the 4" quarter of the Financial Year 2018-19 as
per the provision of the Companies Act 2013,

Board Explanation: Due to official works related to Parliamentary Election 2019 and enforcement
of Model Code of Conducts for Parliamentary Election 2019, the Board meeting was not held in
March 2019 quarter. The Board took note on such matter in its 15" Board Meeting held on
14,06.2019.

(d) Adjourned Annual General Meeting for the FY 2017-18, which was required to be held on or before
30.12.2018 and could not be recalled till date and Financial Statement was not laid before the
members of the Company. However, Company has filed un-adopted Financial Statement for the FY
2017-18& with ROC,

Board Explanation: 2" AGM was adjourned beyond statutory time timit due to non-availabilify of
C&AG comment on Financial Statement etc. related to F.Y. 2017-18. Company has received C&AG
Comments throngh their letter dated 09.08.2019 and such comments shall be placed before Members
in the adjourned 2™ AGM which is scheduled to be called in September 2019.

(e) Company has not constituted various other committees as mentioned in clause no. 12.15 Articles of
Association of the Company.

Board Explanation: The Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee (in lieu of “Share
Teansfer and Allotment Committee’), Nomination and Remuneration Committee had already been
constituted comprising three members. Remaining committees will be constituted subject to review
of applicability of such committees on company and their requirement to the Company’s operation.

15. AUDITORS REPORT

The Auditors, in their Report have referred to the Notes forming part of the Final Accounts, considering
the principle of the materiality; the notes are self explanatory and do not need any further comments
under Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013, The Audit Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

The Financial Statement, Auditors’ Report, Boards’ Report alongwith all Annexure related to 31
Financia! Year ended on 31.03.2019 shall be submitted to Comptroller and Auditor-General of India
(C&AG) for their review and comments thereon and these will be placed before Members in
forthcoming 3" Annual General Meeting for the purpose of adoption. Any comments received from
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18,

Comptroller and Auditor-General of India in future shall be placed before Board for their congideration '

and necessary action thereon.

For financial year 2017-18, the 2" AGM was called on 22.12.2018, but the AGM was adjourned for
want of Quorum, The adjourned AGM was held on 29.12.2018 with adequate quorum and all business
cited in the AGM Notice were transacted except one ordinary business related to ‘receiving, Considering
and adoption of the Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss of the Company for the year
ended 31% March, 2018 together with the Board’s Report & Independent Auditor’s Report thereon’, due
to non-availability of comments from C&AG on Financial Statement, Auditors® Report ete. In this
view, the 2" AGM of Company has been adjourned sine die and such adjourned AGM will be called
through separate notice. The Financial Statement, Auditors’ Report, Boards® Report alongwith all
Annexure related to 2™ Financial Year ended on 31.03.2018 were submitted to C&AG for their review
and comments thereon and the C&AG domments have also been received through their letter dtd.
09.08.2019 with instructions to publish such cormments as Annexure to Board’s Report. Therefore,-the
C&AG Comments related to F.Y. 2017-18 are being sent to Sharecholders for their consideration and
adoption in adjourned 2™ AGM of the Company.

The AGM for 1¥ Financial Year ended on 31.03.2017 was held on 23.12.2017 and agenda for adoption
of Audited Annval Accounts for year 2016-17 were also transacted in such meeting. The C&AG had
issued their comments on Financial Statement related to F.Y. 2016-17 through their letter dated
04.02.2019 and instructed to publish such comments as Annexure to Board’s Report. Therefore, the
C&AG Comments related to F.Y. 2016-17 are also being sent o Shareholders for their consideration
and adoption in adjourned 2™ AGM of the Company.

COST RECORD AND/OR COST AUDIT

The Company does not falls within the provisions of Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Cost records & Audit} Rules, 2014, therefore no such records required to be maintained.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

CORPORATE INSOLYENCY RESOLUTION

During the year under review there was no situation of corporate insolvency and valuable resources of
the Company including capital, manpower, machinery and management are deployed in fair manner
and for financial viable business. Hence, no need for Corporate Insolvency Resolution under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

19, FAILURE TO IMPLEMENT ANY CORPORATE ACTION
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During the year under review there was no failure to implement any corporate action and the Comporate
Action related to issuance and allotment of securities.

20, EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

relationg/
21, VISHAKA COMMITTEE
Pursuant to requirement under Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Internal Complaint
Committee of the Company was constituted by the Board in their meeting held on 31.03.2018, The
constitution of Commiitee is as under:
T | U oy —
1 | Smt, Rachna Gaur -Chief Financial Officer, ISCDL | Presiding Officer |
2 | Shri Sunil Dubey | Executive Engineer (Electrical), ISCDL Member
"3 | S, Rashmi Chaudhari | Communication (IEC/BCC) Expert, SCDL | Member
4 | Smt. Reeta Lahiri Non-Governmental Organizations Member Member
Two meetings of Internal Complaint Committee were duly held on 01.06.2013 on 01.12.2018.
22. VOTING RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES -
During the year under review the Company has not given loan to any employee for purchase of its own
shares as per Section 67(3)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, Therefore the Company not required to make
disclosure as per rule 6(4) of Companies (Share Capita! and Debentures) Ru les, 2014,
23. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in ‘“Form No.-MGT 9°, as required under
Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is included in this report as ‘Annexure I’ which is also
available on Company’s Website and may be accessed at fittps:/wwiv.smarteityindore.org/i nvestor-

Your Directors are also thankful to the Members of the Company for their faith and confidence in the
Management of the Company. '

Place: Indore

Date: 2¢/od {2019

For & on behalf of Board of

Indore Smart City Development Limited

Executive Director

. DIN: 07636528
19

LOKESH KUMAR JATAY

Chairman
PIN: 08383862




Annexure-1

FORM NO.MGT 9 |
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31/03/2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2033 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Adminlstration)

Rules, 2014
1L BEGIS'[RATION & OTHER DETAILS:
L. j CIN | o U75100MP20168GC035528
2. | Registration Date | 110302016
3. | Name of the Company | Indore Smart City Development Limited
4, | Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by share/ State Government Company

Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore MP, 452003 TN

5. | Address of the Registered offiee & contact detsils ' | Emait [d: smartcityindore | 6@gmail.con
| Contact: 0731-2533572

6. | Whetker listed conpany 1 No

Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar .
& Transfer Agent, if siny, ] Not Applicable

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing £Q % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

3. No. Name and Descnptio_n of main products / NIC Code of the Productiservice % fo tofal turnover of
services the company

; 1 Adveriising 74300 80.62

; 2 O&M for Materizl Recovery (Others) 74999 19.38

1L PARTICULAR OF HOLDING, SUBSIDARY ANS ASSOCIATE COMPANIES- Company not having any holding/

Subsidiary/ Joint Ventore/ Associate
S, Name And Address of | CIN/GLN _ Holding 1% OF | APPLICABLE SECTION

clause (b) of explanation

H NO. | The Company Subsidiary ! 1 SHARE
f . . Associate HELD
). Madhya Peadesh Urban [ U75110MP20155GC034139 Holding 0% Section 2{87))) rcad with

Development Co.
Limited '

v, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentnge of Total Equity)-

i) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING

No. of Shaves held st the beglnning of the Nu. of Shares liejd at the end of the year [As on 31- [ %
year |As ont $f-April-2018] March-2019) .| Chang
Category of Sharcholders %ol | De ' %of | du:in
. Demat Physical | Total Total | mp Physical ‘Fotal Total the €
' Shares [t Shares | year
A. Promoter(s}
(1) Indian
2) Individual/ HUF - 50 50 000 | - 50 50 0.00 Nil
b) Ceniral Gove .




¢) State Govi (5)

90900550

:

SIAGREN

50,00

19,99,99,990

9,99,99,990

Nil

4} Bodies Comp.

¢} Banks { Fl

-

£y Any other (Local body)

©.99,99.960

9,50,95,960

5040

9,99,99,960

9,99,99,960

Lbl

Sub- total (A) (1)~

20,60,00,000

20,00,00,00¢

100,00

20,00,00,000

20,00,00,000

Nil

(2) Foreign
n  NRIs-
[ndividuals

by Other-
Individuals

¢)  Any othet

Sub total (A} 2k

Total Sharcholding of
Pramofers {(Ay= {A) {1} +
{4)(2)

20:00,00.000

20,00,00,000

20,00,60,000

B. Public Shareholding

1. [nstifutions

a) Mutual Funds

o) Banks / FI

¢} Central Govt

d) State Govi(s)

¢) Yenture Capilsl Funds

f) Insurance Companies

= Flls

h) Foreign Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (Bi{1):~

7. Non-lastitutions

a) Badigs Corp.

1) Indian

ii) Overseas

b Individuals

i) Individuat shareholders
holding  nominal  share
capital upto Rs. 1 Jukh

ii) lndividua sharcholders
hotding nominat shire
capital in excess of R5 |
Jakh

) Others (speeify)
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Sub-total (B)(2):-

Rt

Tatal Public
Sharcholding (B)=(B)}(1)+
(B}

C. Shares hedd by .
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

100.00

Grend Total {A+83+C) Nil 200000000 | 200000000 | 10000 . 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 Nit
*Note: 50 shares held by Individuals are held in the capacity of State Government and Loeal body.
ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER -
Shareholding at th b inni t %
SN Areficiding a ye':r cginning of the Shareholding at the ¢nd of the year cha:lge
] %of | Y%ofShares %ol | %ofShares | M
Sharchelder’s Name No. of total Pledged / total Pledged 7 |- .
Sha. 0 " Shares | encumbered { No, of Shares Shares encumbere 'dUrIng
Rres of the to total of the d-to total | the
compaay shares company Sliares year
* Shri Nishans i ’
| | Warwade, 14S 1¢ 0.00 y ) ) N i
** Shri Lokesh Kumar - i} . j 10 0.00 _ .
Jayav .
Indore Municipal . . .
2 Corporation 9,59.99,960 30,00 9,99,99,960 50.00
3 | *Shri Rohan Saxena i 0.00 - 10 0.0¢ - -
*Shri Gautam Singh, . j i . .
4 LS 10 0.00
* Shri Vivek Sarotriya - - “ 10 .00 - .
5 *Shri Rajesh Nagal 10 0.00 - 10 0.00 - -
Madhya Pradesh
6 | Urban Development 9,99,99,990 50,00 - “ $,99,99 990 50.00 - -
Co, Limited
**Dr, Manju Sharma 10 0.00 - - - - .
7 |'**5hn Swatantra
Kumar Singh, 145 10 0.00 ) )

*Shares are held in the capacity of Nominee of Indore Musicipal Corporstion
“* 8hares are hield in the capacity of Nominee of Madhya Pradesh Urban Development Co, Limited

iiiy CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’' SHAREHOLDING (plgase specily, if there Is no change)

SN Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Sharcholding during the .
yenr ] year )
Particulars % of total % of total
No., of shares shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
. company company
1 * Shri Nishant Warwade, 45
1.1 Atthe beginning of the year 11} 0.00 10 ¢.00
Transferred on 08.03.2019 {10} {0.00) 0 9.00
At the end of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
2 *Bhri Lokesh Kumar Jatav, £45
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At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

| Acquired through Transfer on i
08.03.2019 10 0.00 10 .00
At the end of the year _ i0 0.00 10 0.00
Indore Municipal Corporation
At the beginning of the year 9,99,99,960 50.00 9,95,99,960 50.06
Transactions Durlng the Year - - 9,99,99,950 0.00
At the end of the year 9,99,99,960 50.00 9,99,59,960 50.00
*Shri Rohan Saxena
At the beginning of the year 10 0.00 10 0.00
Transactions During the Year - - 16 0.00
At the end of the year 1o 0.00 10 0.00
*Shri Gautam Singh, 745
At the beginning of the year K 0.00 10 0.00
Transferred on 29,09,2018 (10) (0.00} 0 0
Atthe end of the year 0 0,00 0 0.00
*Shri Kumar Purushottam
Af the beginning of the year 9 0.00 ] 0.00
Acquiced through Transfer on
29.09.2018 10 (.00 10 0.00
Transferred on 08.03.2019 {10} {0.00) ¢ 0
At the end of the year 0 000 0 0.00
*Shri Vivek Sarotriya '
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 0 6.00
Acquired through Transfer on
08.03.2019 10 0.00 10 0.00
Al the end of the year 10 0,00 1o 0.00
*Shri Rafesh Nagal
At the begianing of the year 10 - 0.00 10 0.00
Transactions During the Year - - 1o 0.00
At the ead of the year 10 0.00 10 0.00
Madhya Pradesh Urban
Development Co. Limited
At the beginning of the year 9,99,99,990 50.00 9.99,99,990 30,00
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Transactions During the Year : - “ 9,99,99,990 0.00
At the end of the year 9,99,§9,99D 56.00 9,99,99.990 50,00
#Dy. Manju Sharma

jg. | Atthe beginning of the year 0 0.00 10 0.00
Transferred on 29.09.2018 {10) (0.00) Q 0
At the end of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
#*Shri Swatantra Kumar Singh,
s
At the beginning of the year Q 0.00 0 0.00

11 -

" | Acquired through Transfer on

25002018 : {0 0.00 10 0.00
At the end of the year 10 0.00 14 0.0

*Shares ave held in the Capacity of Nominee of Indoré Municipsl Corporafion

** Shares are held in the Capacity of Nominee of Madhya Pradesh Urban Development Co Limited.

iv) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS: NA
{Other than Directors, Promoters and Helders of GDRs and ADRs):-

-Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Sharcholding

For each of the Top 10 of the YEAT during the year
SN Sharcholders % of total 54 of total
No. of shares | shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
cCOntpany

Al ihe beginning of the year

company

Trangaclions During the Year

At the end of the year

v) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Shareheldihg a¢ the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding

SN ) o N
{ Shareholding of ench Directors and each Key ol the yei; pravem during the gfts:ftotal
Managerial Personnel 1 No, of shares | sharesof the | No, of shares shares of the
' company cHmpAy
* Shri Nishant Warwade, I45
1, | Atthe beginaing of the year 10 0.00 1o 0.00
Transferred on 08.03.2019 (10} {0.00) 0 0.00
At the end of the year 0 0.00 o 0.00
*Shei Lokesh Kumar Jatay, 148 ;5
2. | Atthe beginning of the year 0 0.0¢ 0 .00
 Acquired through Transfer on 08.03.2019 10 0.00 10 Q.00
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At the ead of the year

0.00

006

3.

Shri Manish Singh, 145 o

At the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Year

Atthe end of the year

Shri Asheesh Singh, IAS g

At the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Year

At the end of the year

Shri Ashwini Kumar -

Al the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Year

Atthe end of the year

6.

Shri Surendra Singh Rajpoot ¢

At the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Year

At the end of the year

**Dr, Manju Sharma

At the beginning of the year

14

0.60

0.00

Transferred on 29.09.2018

(10}

(0.00)

At the end of the year

0.00

0.00

| **Shri Swatantra Kumar Singh, IS ¢

At the beginning of the year

0.00

0.00

Acquired through Transfer on 29.09.2018

10

0.00

0.00

At the end of the year

6.0G

6.00

9,

Shei Rahul Jain, Z45 5

At the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Yeat

At the end of the year
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*Shri Gautam Singh, 145 ¢ '

10, | Atthe beginning of the year 10 0.00 14 0.00
Transferred on 29.09.2048 {0 (0.00) 0] 0
At the end of the year 0 0.0Q 0 .00
*Shri Kumar Purushottam g,
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 0 Q.00
l]' Acquired through Transfer on 29,09.2018 10 (.00 1 .00
Transferred on 08.03.2019 (10) 0.00) 0 " 0
At the end of the year 0 0.00 [H 0.00
*Shri Vivelk Sarotriya gz
12, | Atthe beginning of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
Acquired through Transfer on 08.03.2019 0 0,00 10 Q.00
At the end of the year 10 0.00 0 0.00
Shri Rajesh Nagsal 4
13. | Atthe beginning of the year 10 0.00 10 0.00
Transactiens During the Year - - - 10 0.00
At the cnd of the year 10 0.00 10 Q.00
Shri Gafra Mchin ;1
4. | Atthe beg.inning of the year - - - ~
Transactions During the Year - - - .
At the end of the year - - - -
Shri Krishna Kumar Songaria 4g
i5. | Atthe beginning of the year . - - -
Transactions During the Year . - - -
At the end of the year - - - -
Shri Shankar Yadav ;g
6. | Atihe beginning of the yci;r - - - -

Transactions During the Year

At the cnd of the year




Prof. Shri Rishikesha Thiruvenkatn Krishnan

i
At the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Year

At the end of the year

18,

Ar. Smt. Deeptf Vyas g3

At the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Year

At the end of the year

19.

Shri Rohan Sxxena ¢y

At the beginning of the year

0.60

16

Q.00

Transactions During the Year

w

0.00

At the end of the year

0.c0

.00

20.

Shri Sandeep Kumar Soni gy

At the beginning of the yenr

Transactions During the Year

At the end of the year

2

Shri Anurag Kumar Saxena ;)

At the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Year

At the end of the year

Smt. Rachna Gaur o

At the beginning of the year

Transactions During the Year

At the end of the year

)
&
]
O]
(53
{6)
M
&)
]

3

Ceases to hold Dircctorship w.e.f. 15.01.2019 and Shases were held in the capacity of Nominee of IMC
Joined the Board as Chairman w.e.f. 07.03.2019 and Shaces hetd in the capacity of Nominee of IMC

Ceases to hold Directorship w.e.f. 18.05.2018
Joined the Board as Excevtive Director w.e.f [8.05.2013
Ceases 0 hold Direclorship w.e.f, 20.12.20618
Ceases to hold Directorship w.e.f. 16.07.2018

Ceases 10 hold Directorship w.o.£ 16,07.2018 and Shares were held in the sapacity of Nominee of MPUDCL
Joined the Board as Nomince Director w.e.f, £2,11.2018 and Shares held in the capacity of Neminee of MPUDCL

Joined the Board as Nominge Director w.e.f 16.07.2018
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(10) Ceases to hold Dircclorship we.f. 1 7.07.2018 and Shares were lseld in the capacity of Nomince of IMC
(L1} Joined the Board as Nomines Director w.e.f, 17.07.2018 and ceases to hold Directorship w.e.f. 28.01,2019 and Shares wers held iny the capasity
of Nominee of IMC
(12} Joined the Board as Neminee Disector w.e.f 01.67.2019 and Shaces held in the capacity of Nominee of IMC w.e.L 08.03.201%
(1) Joined the Board as Nomines Director w.e.f 16.09.2016 and Shares hetd in the capacity of Nominee of IMC
(14) Jained the Board as Nominee Direstor wef 16.09.2016
{(35) Ceases to hold Directorship w.c.f. 01.04.2018 and joined the bourd again as Neminee Director wef 15.06.20i8
(16) Joined the Board as Nominze Dircctor w.el 19122016
(17} Toined the Boasd as Independent Director w.e.f 12052017
(18) Foined the Bourd as Independent Director w.e.f 12.11.2018
‘ (19) Ceased from office of Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. 23.03.2019 and Shares held in the capasity of Nominge of IMC
{20) Joined the Company as Chiel Executive Officer w.e.f 23.032012
{21} Joined the Company as Company Secretary w.e.l. 02.00.2016
" (22 Tained the Company as Chief Financial Officer we.f 29.09.2017

V1) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/acerued but not due for paymeat~  NIL

' red Loans
Secured Lo Unseeured

Particulars ' 'exclud!ng Louns
deposits

Tota] -

Deposits Indebtednéss

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

{i) fmterest due but not pald

ii7) Interesi accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Tndebtedness during the financial year

+  Addition -

e Reduction : . -

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid _ -

jii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i-+ii+iii)

IV. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERAL PERSONNEL- -

A, REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECT OR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER:- NIL

_ Directors | Totl
SN Particulars of Remuneration: o * | Amount

- -

Gross salary
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Income-tax Act, 196)

wza} Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the

(b) Value of perquisites v/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

{c} Profits in lien of satary under section 17(3) Income- tax

Act, 1961
2, | Steck Option - - R
3 | Sweal Bquity - - -
Commission - - ~
4, | - as % profit
- others, specify...
5. 1 Others, please specify - . .
6. | Total (A) - : "
7. | Ceiling as per the Act - - .
" B. REMUNERATION TQ OTHER DIRECTORS —
Name of Directors Tota) Amount (In Rs.'}
SN Particulars of Remuneration RISHIKESHA .
THIRUVENKATA | DEEPTIVYAS
KRISEHNAN
Independent Directors Nil Nil Nil
Fee for attending board/committee meetings 90000 45000 1,35,000
1. | Commission Nit Nil il
Others, ptease specify Nil Nil Nil
Total {1} ' 90000 45000 1,35,000
Other Non-Executive Directors Nil Nil Nil
Fee for altending board commitice meetings Nil Nil Nid
2 . i :
Commission Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil
3. | Towtz) Nil Nil Nif
4. | Total (B)=(1+2) 50000 43000 1,35,000
5. | Total Managerial Remuncration " ' )
6. | Overall Ceiling as per the Act . - i

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD-

Key Managerial Personnel{ Rs in Lakhs)

SN Particulars of Remuneration -
CED CSs CFQ
Anurag Kumar Total
Rohar Saxena Saxens Rachna Gaur
Gross salary Nit 7.39 8.39 1598

29




E.x'cc_u'i ¢ Director
DIN: 07636828

30

Chairman

DIN: 08383862

() Salary as per provisions contained in Nil 8.59
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 7.39 > 1598
(b) Value of perquisites ws 17(2) Nil it Nil Nil
Income-tax
Act, 1961 _
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section Nil Nil Nil Nil
17{3) [ncome-tax Act, 1961 ] _ _
2. | Stock Option Nil Nil N[ il
3. | Sweat Bquity Nil Nil Wil Nil
Commission Nil Nil i Nit
- as % of profit Nil Nil N} il
others, specify Nil Nil wil Nil
5. | Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nit
Totl il 7.39 8.59 15.98
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: - NIL
Details of Penalty
Section of the . Brief ! Punishment/ Authority A,p peal mftde,
Type Companies Act | Descriplion | Compounding fees [RD / NCLT/ #any (give
B P 4 COURT] Detaiis)
imposed
A, COMPANY
Penally Nit Ni Nil Nil it
Punishinent Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil Nil Nil N Nil
Punishment Nil - Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nit _ Nil Nit Nil Nil
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil Nit Nil Nil il
Punishnient Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil
Compounding Hil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Place: Indore For & on behalf of Board of
ar: 2 ndore omar evelopment Lame
Dat &{ @220 Indore S { City Develop t Limited
LOKESH KUMAR JATAV
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Ceomnany Sacratar . Pratil Tripathi
Gompany Secrstarias e A.CA. LS

306, Manags Bhawan Extn,

11, RNT Marg, Indore, {M.E), india
Tel; +31 731 4043080, 4033089
Coll; 91 88272 34275

E-mail: tripathi.pratik@gmall.com
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31%7 March, 2019
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. ¢ of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To,

The Members,

Indore Smart City Development Limited,
ladore

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions

“and the adherence to good corporate practices by Indore Smart City Development Limited
(herelnatter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Indore Smart City Development Limited’s books, papets,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period ended on 31% March, 2019, has complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting

made hereinalter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by Indore Smart City Development Limited for the period
ended on 31% March, 2019 according to the provisions of; |

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation} Act, 1956 (“‘SCRA®) and the Rules made
thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations aund Bye-laws framed thereunder
~ (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); '

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management zﬂ:ct_, 1999 and the Rules #nd Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign-Rifscthuestment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings i




Jripails & Assorigtes | “ -
! ' - Indore Smart City Development Limited \

Company Socrelaries Secretarial Audit Report for FY 2018-19 "
(v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- (Not applicable to the

Company during the Audit Period)

{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acguisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

(b) The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading}
Regutations, 1992;

{c} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; '

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Timployee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to
the Company during the Audil Period}, :

(¢) The Securitties and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt.
Sccurities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period); )

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars (o an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 fegarding the Companies Act and dealing -
with client; )

{g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
and

(h} The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Seceurities)
Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(vi} Other Laws specifically applicable to the Company. as informed by management:-
NI,

2. We have also examined cowpliance with the applicable clauses of the folowing:
(iy  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,

During the period under review, the Company has materially complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to followings :-

a. Company was having only one independent Director from 01% April, 2018 to 11%
November, 2018 against the two independent Dircctors required as per section
149 of the Companies Act 2013,

b. Company is not constituted Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee consisting
majority of Independent Directors from 01% April, 2018 to 19™ November, 2018.
Audit comunities also did not had majority of Independent Director from 01%
April, 2018 to 19" November, 2018 as required under the Companies Act 2013,
However above were complied on 19.11,2018.

[

¢. Meeting of Board of Directors hag pefihasesld
Year 2018-19 as per the provigidiy @i Conf

in the 4™ quarter of the Financial
jes Act 2013, '
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d. Adjourned Annual General Meeting for the FY 2017-18. which was required to
be held on or before 30.12.2018 ond eould not be recatied tili dale and Financial
Statement was not laid before the members of the Company. However, Company
has filed unadopted Financial Statement for the FY 7017-18 with ROC;

e. Company has not constituted various other cammittees as mentioned in clause 1o,
12.15 Arlictes of Association of the Company.

3. We turiher report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. with proper balance of
Executive Diteclors, Nop-Execotive Directors. The changes in the composilion of the
Board of Directors that wok place during the period wnder review Were carried out in
complinnce with the provisions of the Act. .

Adequate potice is given to all directors to schedale the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notos on agency wers sent at least seven days in advance or with shorter periad,
wherever required, and a system exists for seeking and obtaiting further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaninglul partici pation at
the meeting. .

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting maembers® vicws are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes, wherever exist,

4. We further report that there are adequale syslems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company [0 monilor and stsure
complionee with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

5. We further report that during the audit period the company has not issued and allotted
equity Shares on right issue basis.

t"'\T:'J 3

artner
C.P. No. 3358

Place: Indore
Date: 26.09.2(0319

- Note: This report is 10 be read with Annexure fo Seeretarial Audit Repoit of eyen date which
Iy ammexod with this report and forms an fntegral part of this repory.
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To,

Annexure to Secrctarial Audit Report

The Members,
Indore Smart City Development Limited

Indore

Our report for 'Y 2018-19 of even date is to be read along with this letter.

i,

Piace: Indore
Date: 26.09.2019

Maintenances of secretarial records are the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on cur audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records,
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our report is based on said sceretarial records.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and

Books of Accounts of the Company.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other specifically applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. We have not gone through
the laws which are general in nature and applicable to the Company.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an asswance as o the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation and
declaration about the compliance of laws, rules and regulation and happening of
events ete.

For P.S. Tripathi & Assec]

Company Sgopdhd

Partner
C.P. No. 5358

- R EEEEEE

Indore Smart City Development Limited
Secretarial Audit Report for FY 2018- 19_
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDLA,
UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b} OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT'
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2019

The preparation of Financia} Statements of Tndore Srnart City Development Limited for
the year ended on 31 March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting framework:
prescribed under the CoMpanies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under Section 139 (5) of the Act are tesponsible for expressing opinion on the
Financial Statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act.
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 26 September 2019,
I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the Financial Statements of
Indore Smart City Development Limited for the year ended on 3! March 2019, This
supplementary audit has been carvied out independently without access to the working
papers of the Statutory Auditors and is fimited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory
Auditors and Company personqel and a selective examination of some of the accounting
records, Based on my supf;lemcntaay audit, I would like to highlight the following
significant matters under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act which have come to my altention
and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the Financial

Statements and the related audit report.

Balance Sheet

Assets :
Property, Plant & Equipment (Note 3) - ¥ 59.40 crore

1. As per Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013 useful life of elecfrical installation and
equ:'pmem is 10 years for providing depreciation. However, the Company provided

depreciation on Energy Efticient LED Streot Lighting considering 7 years as its useful fife.

This has resulted in understatement of Depreciation & Amortization expenses by
¥ 4 [akh with corresponding overstatement of Property, Plant. and Equipment and
und erstafemem deoss to the same extent. .

Scamnéd with CimScinmér



Non-Current Assets
Capital Work in Progress ~ (Note No-d)-% 178,85 crore

incly .
2. The above does not include ap amonnt of ¥ | 46 crore being the bill received from. the
contractor in March 2019 for work of construction of m

odular type rain harvesting system
carried out during 2018-19, - '.

This has resulted in Understatement of Capital work-in-progress with correspondiing
understatement of Current Liabilities by ¥ 1.46 crore.

- Equity and Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities — Other Financial Liabilities (Note No 16) —X 22.33 crore

3 The above does not include T 28.20 lakh & 12.01 lakh on advertiserment -

expenditure and T 16.19 lakh on census of tress expenditure) for work carried out during
the financial year 2018-19, _

This has resulted in understatement of Other Financial Liabilities and Expenditure by
X 28,20 lakh each with corresponding understatement of Loss to the same extent,

Statement of Profit and Loss
Income

Revenue from operations — ¥ 1,69 erore
4, The above include X 11.52 lakh being interest camned on mobitization advance and

labour cess collection charges which were not core operating activities of the Company.,
* Hence, it should have been booked as Other Income instead of Revenue from Operation,
This has resulted in overstatement of Revenue from Operation and understatement of Other

Income by ¥ 1 1.52 l1akh.

Other Income (schedule 21) - T 44.42 crore

8. The above include X 1.15 crore being notional interest on security deposit calenlated at
the rate of 10 per cent based on interest charged from contractor on mobilization advance,
However, Security deposit received from the contractor was either kept in saving bank
account oF in fixed deposit account, therefore, interest on security deposit should have been

calculated at the rate of interest of 6.67 per cent on conservative basis.

Seamméa with CimScimnér
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This has resulted in -
¥38.24 lakh @ 114 sgierbta‘-ement of Other Income and Grant for project expensses by
Despite comment ‘ ¢ c?kh ~X76.59 lakh) with corresponding understatement of Ioygg,

Ol C&AG on the Financi
corrective action wa ancial Statements for the year 2017-X 3, no

;ndependent Auditor's Report
60 Th 3 . ‘

© Statutory Auditor did not enclose the Report under section 143(5) of the Com panies
Aect, 2013 (COmpliance report on the directions/sub-directions issued by the C&KAG) with
their Report. Thus, the Auditor’s Report is deficient to that extent. '

Gencral

7. A reference is invited to the Opinion Paragraph wherein the Statutory Auditor has
stated *In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explarations
given‘ fo us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies det, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and faiy view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards, prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2019 and its profit, and its cash flows for the year enided on

that date,” However, the Company has incurred loss of T 3.97 crore for the year ended 31
March 2019. Thus, the Auditor’s Report is deficient to that extent,

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: Gwalior

Principal Accountant Gener i
Pate: al (Audit-
5709/9;0 j@ Madhya Pradesh, Gwalior »
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INDORE SMARTF CETY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

Nehru Park Campus, Indore, MLP,, 452003

Ph. No.: 6731-2535572; E-mail: smarteftyindorel6@gmail.com
CIN: U7S100MP2016SGC035528; Website: www.smarteityindore.org

Annexure-II

Management reply on comments of the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India on the .
Financial Accounts of Indore Smart City Development Limited for F.Y. 2018-19

Sr.
No.

CAG Comments

Management Reply

1.

Balance Sheet

Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment-
Note No.- 3 -

Rs. 59.40 crore

As per Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013 wuseful life of eleclrical

installation and equipment is 10

years for providing depreciation.
However, the Company provided
depreciation on Energy Efficient LED
Street Lighting considering 7 years as
its useful life. This has resulted in
understatement of Depreciation &
Amortization expenses by Rs. 4 lakh
with corresponding overstatement of
Property, Plant and Equipment and
understatement of Loss to the same
extent,

That in case of Energy Efficient |.
LED Street Lightning doesn't fall
under the category of Electrical
Installation and equipment, it is
intelligent LED type system having
smart controls and hence the its
useful life is taken 7 years based on
the O&M period as per the contract
which is 7 Years. The relevant
extract from RFP in this régard is
enclosed,

Hence the depreciation on the
above assets have been properly &
correctly taken.

Hence this para should be
treated as properly complied and
ke dropped.

Non-Current Assets
Capital Work in Progress-
Note No.- 4 -

Rs, 178,85 crore

The above does not include an
amount of Rs. 1.46 crore being the
bill received from the contractor in
March 2019 for the work of
construction of modular type rain
harvesting system carried out during
2018-19.

This has resulted in understatement
of Capital work-in-progress with

| verified and approved in the month | -
of May 2019 only hence the eis|

That even though the bill was
raised by the vendor before
31.03.2019 but the same was

accounted for after 3 103$2 9.

This is nothifigh
grant and hi




Sr.

No.

CAG Comments

Management Reply

corresponding understatement of
Current Liabilities by Rs. 1.46 crore.

Equity and Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities-
Financial Liabilities
Note No.- 16 -

Rs, 22.33 crore

Other

The above does not include Rs, 28.20
lakh {Rs. 12,01 lakh on
advertisement expenditure and Rs.
16.19 lakh on census of ftrees
expenditure) for work carried out
during the financial year 2018-19,

This has resulted in understatement
of Other Financial Liabilities and
Expenditure by Rs, 28,20 lakh each
with corresponding understatement
of Loss to the same extent.

That in regard to understatement
of Expenditure by Rs.28.20/-
Lakhs due non recognition of
Expenditure for Advertisement and
Expenditure towards census of
trees of Rs.12.01/- Lakhs and
Rs.16.19/- Lakhs respectively., we |
would like to submit that even
though the bill was raised by the
vendor before 31,03.2019 but the
same was received, verified and
approved later on and hence the |-
same is accounted for after
31.03.2019 only.

This in nothing but utilisation of
grant and hence does not impact
the profit and loss account of the
compary,

Hence, this para may be treated
as properly complied and be
dropped.

Statement of Profit and Loss
Income )

Revenue from operations-
Rs, 1.69 crore

The above include Rs. 11.52 lakh
being interest earned on mobilization
advance and labour cess collection
charges which were not core
operating activities of the Company.
Hence, it should have been booked as
Other Income instead of Revenue
from Operation.

This has resulted in overstatement of
Revenue from  Operation and
understatement of Other Income by

That in regard to classification of
Interest from = venders on
mobilisation advance of Rs, 10.66
lakhs and labour collection charges
of Rs. 0,86 Lakhs, we would like to
submit as under: -

1.That the classification of Revenue
of the company has been made as
per Ind AS-18 "Revenue", That the
Standard covers as under:

This Standard shall be applied in
accounting for revenue arising from
the following transactions and
events

{a) the sale of goods;

Rs, 11.52 lakh.




Sr.

NO- '

CAG Comments

Management Reply

(b} the rendering of services; and

{c) the use by others of entity assets |
yielding interest, royalties and
dividends.

2.That the use by others of entity
assets gives rise to revenue in the
form of:

{a) interest—charges for the use of |
cash or cash equivalents or
amounts due to the

entity;

(b) royalties—charges for the use of |
long-term assets of the entity, for
example patents, trademarks,
copyrights and computer software;
and

(¢) dividends—distributions of
profits to Tholders of equity
investments in proportion to
their holdings of a particular class
of capital.

3.That interest from vendor on
mobilisation advance is nothing
but interest charges for use of cash
and cash equivalent or amount due
to the company hence the same has
been recognised as Revenue of the
company.

4.That labour collection charges
are also the collection from the
labour deducted from the
amount payable to the vendor and
is indirectly associated with the
main activity of the company hence
the same has been accounted for ag
Revenue of the company.,




e § e

Sr.,

Schedule 21-
Rs. 44.42 crore

The above include Rs. 1.15 crore
being notional interest on security
deposit calculated at the rate of 10
per cent based on interest charged
from contractor on moebilization
advance. However, security deposit
received from the contractor was
either kept in saving bank account or
in fixed deposit account, therefore,
interest on security deposit should
have been calculated at the rate of
interest of 6.67 per cent on
conservative basis.

This has resulted in overstatement of
Other Income and Grant for Project
expenses by Rs. 38.24 lakh (Rs.
114.83 lakh - Rs. 76.59 lakh) with
corresponding understatement of
loss.

Despite comment of C&AG on the
Financial Statements for the year
2017-18, no corrective action was
taken by the Compeny during 2018~
19,

No CAG Comments Management Reply
Hence this para should be
treated as properly complied and
be dropped. :
5. | Other Income

That in regard to discounting of
assets @ 10% instead of 6.67%
earlier mentioned in the memo was
6.5% heing average yield rate of
deposits with bank, we would like
to submit that as per Ind AS 113
Fair Vahie Measurement, Fair
Value is a market based
measurement, not an entity -
specific measurement, for some
aszets and liabilities, observable
market transactions or market
information might be available,
However, the objective of a fair
value measurement in both case is
same -to estimate the price at
which an orderly transaction to sell
the asset or to transfer the liability
would take place between market
participants at the measurement
date under current market
conditions.

That as per above para entity
specific rate is not required but rate
more likely as per current market
shall be used. That 10% rate is
more likely to be matched with
market rate and hence the same
has been taken as discounting
factor. '

Further want to add that Ind AS

109 Financial Instruments. It reads;
as ‘the fair value of a long-term loan;
or receivable that carries nog'
interest can be measured as the]
present ;

i
—

=



Sr.
No.

CAG Comments

Management Repty

value of all future cash receipts |
discounted using the prevailing
market rate(s) of interest for a
similar instrument (similar as to
currency, term, type of interest rate
and other factors) with a similar
credit rating,

In the present case financial
mstrument is a financial liability,
The standard requires to consider
market rate of interest for a similar
instrument i.e. interest rate for a
financial liability,

Bank deposits are financial assets
and not financial liabilities,
Adoption of bank deposit interest
rate, would be contradictory to
requirements of aforesaid para,

The rate has to be in respect of
financial  instrument being a

financial liability. It could he a _

borrewing rate on loans given by
bank for similar factors. In such

circumstances, rate of 10% seems |

reasonable and justified

That in Financial statements for FY
2018-19 we have also made proper
disclosure in this regard.

Hence this péra should be
treated as properly complied and
be dropped.

Independent Auditor’s Report

Statutory Auditor did not enclose the
Report under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 {compliance
report  on the directions/sub-
directions issued by the C&AG) with
their Repert. Thus, the Auditor’s
Report is deficient to that extent.

That the has provided the report
under section 143{5) of The
Companies Act 2013. The copy of
Same is enclosed for your kind
reference. '




At

Sr.

No CAG Comments Management Reply
Hence this para should be |
treated as properly complied and
be dropped.

7. | General

A reference is invited to the Opinion
Paragraph wherein the Statutory
Auditor has stated ‘In our opinion and
to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements
give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the
manner so reguired and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards,
prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019 and its profit, and its
cash flows for the year ended on that
date.’ However, the Company has
incurred loss of Rs. 3.97 crore for the
year ended 31 March 2019. Thus, the
Auditor’s Report is deficient to that
extent. '

That auditor has replied for the
same, that he would take care for
the same in future. That thel
mistake is apparent from record
and in no case misguide the users
of the financial statements.

Hence this para should be
treated as properly complied and
be dropped.

For & on behalf of Beard of Directors

ADTIGARG, IAS

{Chief Executive Officer)
IncAore Smart City Development Limited

-

Playce: Indore
Daved: 12.10.2020
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@ GUPTA & ASHOK

 INDEPENDENT AUDITQR'S REPORT

To the Members of Indore Smart City Development Lisnited.

Repart on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying standalone fi nancial statements of lnddre $mart Clty Davelapmem
Limlted {"the Company”), which comprise the balance shee€ as at March 31, 2019, and the statersient of -
Profitand Loss, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows forthe year then ‘enled,’ K
and notes to the financial statements, Ineluding a summary of mgnzﬁcant accounting po[lcues and other
explanatory information. . -

In our opinion and to the best of our mformation and accordiig to the explanations gwen to us, the ;
afaresaid financial statements give the Information required by the Companias Act 2013 (“the Act’) in -
the manner 50 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accountmg Standards.
prescribed under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principies generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 34, 2019 and its profit, and fts cash flows for the year
ended on that date,. : :

BASIS FOR OPINION ' .
We conducted our audit of the standalone ﬂnanciai statements I accordance with the. .,tandards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further:desceibed jn the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report, We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the Code, of £thics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of thdia {“ICAI"} together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statemants under the provisions of the Act and rules ’
made thereunder, and we_have fulfilled our other ethical responsibliities in. accordance with these

requirements and the ICAP’s Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidénce we ‘have obtaipred js-
sufficient and appropriate to provide a biasis forour audit opinion on. the standalone financial statements, . -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Kev audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most stgmficance
In our audit of the standalone financlal statements of the, current geriod, These matters are
addressed in the context of our audit of. the finaricial statements as a whole, and ity forming our
opipion theredn, and we do not. prowde a separate opiriion on these matters.

A. land allotted to the Company by state government
‘Description of key audit matter —
The Madhya Pradesh Government has aliotted 16.413 hettare [and to. the Company at
MOG line Indore without any'monetary consideration. The Company has recognized tha .
sald land as ‘Investment property’ in the financial staterr}ents at-norinal value of Ra;
The transaction required management's significant judgment regardmg ‘classificat
asset’, the amoynt at which {tis recogmzed and the tax c0nsequences




% Descrintion of Auditor’s.response - . _ S _
E : " We evaluated the appropriateness of the' management’s judgment in r'espect of
‘ classification of land and its recogriition amount and its impact on provisioning of Currént
tax, . : . N
The land allotment letters Issued by MP government were read by us to_identlfy
conditions associated with the grant. The intention of management-in respect’ of
proposed use of land was assessed by us. For this, we read the minutes of meeting and
| tender documents issued by the Company for redevelopment of land. The-applicabilsty of
; _ Ind AS-20 ‘Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance’
i ' - was checked particularly with reference to value of land at which it should be Fecognized. -
a _ . - ICDS VH relating to government grants was applied for computing tax effeéts on this -
transaction. ' ' ' o

Management’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Standa!bne Financlal 'Stéteméﬁ,ts .

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134{5) -of the

Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that givea tiue and

fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company i

| accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in In'di_a; including the .Indian

| - Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This reésponsibility also incldes

| maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordancé with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

| . irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgrments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, iniplementation and maintenance

of adequate Internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the ..

standalone financial statements that give atrue and fair view and are free material misstaternent, - .

whether due to fraud or error, ' .

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s =
ability to continue as a going concerh, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the company or to cease operations, or has not realistic alternative to do so. ' '

- The Board of Directors are responsible for overviewing the Company’s financial reporting o
process, ' : . : '

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audlt of the Standalorie Financial Statements L ' o

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance. about whether the .standalone financial -
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and, .

to issue ‘an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of -
assufance, but is not a guarantee thatan audit cariducted in ccordance with the S5As will always

detect material misstatemerit when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error:and .

are considered material if, individually orin aggregate, they could reasonable be -expected to="" 7
influence the economic decision of the users taken on the basis of these standalone finangafo
statements. ' : : R
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs , we exercise professional j@dgment_aind ma jntain

professional skepticism throughout the augit, We also:

o Identify and assess the risk of matérial ‘misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform: audit proce dures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a'naterial misstatement res ylting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involvé collugion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or tl_le overrtd_g of internal cbng'_roh -

+ Obtaln an understanding of internal financial controls refevant to the audit in ordler to "

‘design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances. Under section 343(3}
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Cormpany
has adequate internal financiat control system in place and the operating effectiveness of -

such control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reason,abjehe"ss _6f'

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

. » Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
abllity to continue as a going concesn. If we conclude that a miaterial uncertalnty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to related disclosures in the.
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify_'_. our

opinion, Our conclusions are hased on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

‘auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern, ' o SR

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial -

statements, including the disclosures, and whether. the standalone financiat statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that dchieves: fair .

presentation. :

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statéments may be Influenced. We consider. quantitative
materlality qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit work and in ‘evaluating the

results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identifted misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those ch.arged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identif&,( during our audit:

We also prdvlde those charge with governance with a statement that we have complied with,

relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with tie




telationships and other matters that may reasonab!y be though to bear on our mdepend@.nce, j. 3
ind where applicable, related safeguards. .

fram the matters communicated with those: charged with governance, we determlne those -

_matters that were of most significance in thie audit of the standalone financial statements of the '
turrent period and are therefore the Key autlit matters. We describe these matters IR our
wditor's report unless. law or regulation: preclude public disclosure about the matter or when n’
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated iry gur
teport because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected o outwe|gh
the pubhc interest benefrts of such communication; : o

Report on Qther Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by section 143(3} of the Act, based cn our audit, we,r‘eport that: -

a) We have sought and obtalned all the information and explanations which to the pest ~
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposed of our-audit. _

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept try the N
Company so far as It appears from our examination of those books. .

¢) The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss and the statements of Cash Flow
dealt with by this report are in agreement with relevant books of accoutt. '

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e} On the basi$ of written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31,

* 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualiﬁed

as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of sectton 164(2) of

- the Act. :

fy with respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over fanancral reportlng of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate.
reportin "Annexure A”, Our repart expresses an unmaodified opinion on the adequacy ©
and operating effectweness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

gl Withrespectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor’ s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act,'in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid -
by the Company to its diréctors during the year is in accordance with the provrsions.
of section 197 of the Act.

h} Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report inaccordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 inour oplnion and to
the best of our information and according to the expldnation givento us; :

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its ﬂnancial _
position in its standalone financial statements. '

i, The company has made provision, as required under the applicable faw or B
.accounting standards, for material foreseeable Iosses, n‘ any, on long term
contracts Including derivative contracts. -

il There has been no amount required to: be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protectron Fund by the Companhy. '
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2. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”) issue:d-bs)gh:e
Central Government in terms of section 143 {11) of the Act, we give in “Annexurg_ B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

Place: Indore .
Date: 26.09.2029

+

For Gupta and Ashok
Chartered Accountant
{FR Rp,2254C)

lo (otR
p ol
{CAAsﬁokAgra all N
(Membership Np: 07127.4) =
Partner R -

UDIN: 19071274AAAABNS 338




ANNEXURE ~A TO THE iNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE . B
{Reference to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regula_torly Requ=reme~nts,--
sectlon of our report to the members of Indore Smart City Development Limited} .

Report on the Internal Financial Controfs over financial reporting under Clause {1} of SUII;fsth!Q'h‘.';-; of _

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) -
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indore Smart ‘_:"_‘Y. Develo Rment
Umited (“the.Company”} as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for theyear ended on that date. WL

Management’s Responsibifity for Internal Financial Contrals

The Board of Directors of the Company Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

tontrols based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the’ Corrypany:

considering the essential components of internal controf stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financlai Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ridia

{ICAY): These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct . of its -

business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preventioryand. .

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely °

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility -

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over finariclal

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our auditin accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Cémpanies Act, 2013, to the extent.

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Thosé Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
shout whether adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
malntained and if such controls operated effectively In all material respects. S

Our audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of-internai

financial controls over financlal reporting included obtaining an understanding of intenal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that & material weakness exists, and testing and -

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal ¢ontrol based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the finhancial statements, whether due to fraud or ervor, : ' T

We believe that the audit'evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appmpriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting :
Acompany's internal financial controf over financial reporting is a process designed to provige reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability- of financial reporting and the preparation of financlal statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting. principles. A company's Internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to:the’
maintenance of records, in reasoriable detail, accurately and “fairly reflect the transactions ard
dispositions of the assets of the corpany; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only:
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the commpany; and (3) grovide reas




SRR VEE L N A e Eear R T AR RS

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised a cquisition, use, or dispositia n of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. o

Inherent Limjtations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Réporting . R
Because of the Inherent imitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibifity of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material misstatements dué voprror : -

or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financia
controls.over financlal reporting to future perlods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control |
over financiaf reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degred of
compllance with the policies or procedures may dsterlorate. : o

Opinion : : N
i our opinion, to the best of cur Information arid according to the explanations given to us, the Campany
has, in all materlal respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financlal controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal cantrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considéring the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

. Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india,

For Gupta & Ashok' .
‘Chartered Accountants.
FRNo. 02254C

Place: indore .
Date: 26.05.2019

NG é&
(CA AShok Agrawed
Partner -
M:No,.071274 -

UDIN: 19071274AAAABNGS328




S A e W A e

L ek S T

ANNEXURE —B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE

‘ The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Require ynent's
section of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Indore Smart City Developrient LImited
: on the financial statements for the year eénded 31 March 2019, we report that .

{it () The company is maintaining proper records showing full partu:ulars, includmg quantuatwe
detatls and situation of fixed assets: . .

SN (b) All these fixed assets have béen physlcallv verif ed by the management at reasonable intewa[s
during the year, No matertial dlscrepanc:es were notwed on such verification. ;

{¢) An Immovable in the form of Land of an area 16.413 hectare has been transferred o the
company vide fetter No 10-45/2018/18-2 Dated 25/09/2018 by MP State Government to the
company. The land Is shown under the head Investment property and carsying: value i5 Re 1, Tbe
nemination in thé narve of the. companv is in process as at the reporting date. }

{iy  (a} As the Company has no inventoiy at any time during the year, the requirerent for phyg’i&al
1 _verification of inventory Is not applicable to the Company. Therefore subclause {b) of clause {ii}
of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

{iily () The company did not give any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liabiliey -
partnerships or other parties covered In the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companles Act. Therefore, sub-clause (a), {b) and (c) of clause {ili} of paragraph,?:ofthe Orderare
not applicable, :

{iv} In our opinion and according to exﬁtanations glvén to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and maklng investrments
and providing guarantees ad securities, as applicable, :

{v)  According ta the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our checkmg during
the course of audit, the compa ny has not accepted any deposits,

{vi} The Central Government has not specified mainténanice of the cost records under sub-section. (1) '
of section 148 of the Companiés Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company.
! ' Thus, reporting under clause 3({vi} of the order is not applicable to the company.

{vii} {a} According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is regular In depositing,

' undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, A
Goods and Service Tax; duty of custom, cess and other material statutory dués appiltable toit "~ -
with the appropriate authorities, There was no such outstanding as at tha last day of the flnanclal o
year concerned for a period of more than slx months from the date, they became pavable L

(b} Accordlng to'information and explanations given to us, there are no duesof income tax, wealth
tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty and cess which have dot been deposited on account of

any dispute. . .

{Viif) In our opinfon and according to information and explanations given to us, the conipany' has not
obtained any loan from financial institutions, banks, governrnent orany other person Therefore, o
paragraph 3(vili) of the Orderi is not applicable. . L, : '

(ix} The Company has riot ralsed any money by way of Initial public offer, further public offer or tagn
Ioan Therefore, paragraph 3{ix) of the Order is not applicable. %
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assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispositian of the-
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements, o

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting . S
Because of the inherent fimitations of interna[-flnancial controls over financial reperting; Enclud_ing' the
possibility of coliusion.or improper management override of controls, material misstatements dué to error :
or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial .
cantrols.over financial reporting to future perlods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controb .
over financlal reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degred of
cormpliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate, : : o

Opinion . :
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company '
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls ever financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal control over financial repuorting criteria established by the Company considéring the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note or Audit of Internal Financial

- Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Gupta & Ashok’
'C_harte red Accountants.
FRNo. 02254C

Place: Indore _ . : :
Date: 26.09.2019 . | N A

(CA- ASHOk Agrayigihy

Partner - -

M:No. 071274 g
UDIN: 190712748AAABN5328




4 {x) Based upon audit procedures performed and according to the information and exnlanatigns given .
to us, no fraud by the company or on the-company by its officers or employees has beery poticed
or reported during the course of our audit.

{(xi} According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination ofthe records
of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial reruneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Scheqwe V1o
the Act,

{xii) In our opinion and accordung to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not.
a mdh: company. Accordmglv, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not apphcable

{¥Hli} According to information and explanatlons gwen to us and based on our exammatlon of the‘
records of the Company, the company has not entered into any transactions with the reldted
4 . parties, Accordingly, the clause (xiii) of the order are not apphcable .

{xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our exammataon of the _.
records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private’ -
placement of sharas or fully oc partiy convertible debentures during the year and hence reportlng' -
under clause 3{xiv} of the orderis not applicable to the Company. :

k {x¥) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examtnatlon of the
' records of the Company, the campany has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with them. Hence provisions of section 192 of the Compa nies Act, 2013 are
not applicable to the Company.’ .

(xvi} The Company is not required to be regmtered under section 45-1a of the Reserve Bank of tndia

Act 1934.
For Gupta & Ashok.
Chartered Accountant
) : © FRNo.02254C -
Place: Indore
Date: 26.09.2019- \J; W,Q :

_Parl:rler
M.No. 071274
UDBIN: 1907 1274AAAABNS328




202, Sunnise Tower, 579-M.G. Road, Indore-452001%

G s ar OK

Ph.: 0731-2538821, 40685509, 9826064869
Email.; guptagndashokca@gmal.com

REPORT UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 OF

indore Smart City Development Limited, INDORE

We have examined the books of accounts of INDORE SMART CITY
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED, Indore for the year ended 31st March 2019 and
as per the information and explanation given to us, we submit cur renort
under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 as under : -

1. Whether the company has

system in place to process all
the accounting transaction
through IT system? If yes, the
implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside
IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the
financial implications, if any,
may be stated.

2. Whether there is any

restructuring of an existing
loans or cases of waiver/write

The Company has sys'm to punch
accounting transactions in [T sistem by
manual operators. The t-°nsa~’isns are
recorded in IT system after transac.ions have
taken place. These does not get recorded
automatically in IT system as soon as
transactions take place.

The Company has system i~ ~lace '2 record
all the accounting trans~c :ns  rough IT
system, System generated triaf bunces and
ledgers were available.

The amount of transactior< 2nd the volume
of transactions are very ' . The - “ocessing
of accounting transactior- it [ system
is expected to increase th'- .. °  ission of
recording transactions, deinys in closing of
books of accounts by imnnagement and
delays in finalization of av-"" ~roce:''rres,

To the best of ou- w!
information and explana’’
the Company has not tak- "ny.. -




off of debts/loans/interest etc.
made by lender to the company
due to company’s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the
financial impact may be stated.

3.Whether funds
received/receivable for specific
schemes  from  Central/State
agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

4, Whether the company has taken
adequate measures to prevent
encroachment of idle land owned
by it. Whether any land of the
company is encroached, under
litigation, not put to use or
declared surplus? Details may be
provided.

5.Whether system for monitoring
the execution of work vis-a*-vis the
milestones  stipulated in  the
agreement is in existence and the
impact of cost escalation, if any,
revenue [losses from contracts
etc., have been properly accounted
for in the books.

time during the year.

The funds received for specific schemes from
central / state agencies were properly
accounted for. It is being utilized as per its
term and conditions. However, the
Government grant has not yet been
completely utilized as per the financial
statements as at 31-03-2019.

The Madhya Pradesh Government has
allotted 16.413-hectare land to the Company
at MOG line Indore without any monetary
consideration. We are unable to comment
upon encroachment, if any, over the said
land, as any such information is not availabie.

The system for monitoring the execution of
work vis-a-vis the milestones stipulated in
the agreement is in existence. The impact of
cost escalation, if any, revenue / losses from
contracts etc., have been properly accounted
for in-the books.




6.Whether the bank guarantees
have been revalidated in time?

7.Comment on the confirmation of
the balances of trade receivables,
trade payables, term deposits,
bank accounts and cash obtained.

8.The cost incurred on abandoned
projects and may be quantified and
the amount actually written off
shall be mentioned.

wherein it makes paymen

status of bank guarant~~
counter the risk of non-r >~

guarantees in time.

The Company has obtair-
of term d-

balances
accounts, The Comp-~
confirmation from som-
but not for all of tr.

Company has not obtain:

trade receivables.

To the best of o
explanation provided tc

instance of abandoning ¢«
place. Re-tendering of pr
done where existing ¢
complete it.

For Gupta & Ashc’
Chartered Accor-
FRN: 02254C

CA Axhok Agrawe

(Partner}
M. No.: 07127~
Place: Indore
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- INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT LTD.
CiIN :- UTS100MP20168GC035528
Regd. Off : Smart City Offloe, Nehru Patk Campus, Iodore, B1.P.
Webults | wrwamnrtcityinders. ok, pb No. 4Ta%- 1205 B eadk + pmasteiiyindersd Gaganll eom
PALANCE EHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2019
2 (In Lakh)
Ax at Ansat
Particulars Note March 31, 2019 Magch 31, 2018
ASSETS :
1 NOM CURRENT ASSETS
(a} Property Plant and Equipment 3 5,940,46 2,765.31
(b  Capital Work in Progress 4 17,885.40 9,060.64
{  Investment Property 3 0.00001 .
{d) Other Nor Current Asset
{ijOther Non Current Asset & a%1.98 109,83
(e} Peferrod Tax Asseta 7 - -
- 23,917.84 11,938.77
2 CURRENT ASSETS
{)  Financial Assets
{i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 15,104 .82 30,106.20
{ii) Trade Recicvables 9 41,85 9.38 |
jiif) Other Financial Assets 10 4,245.61 1,34%.08
{b)  Other Current Asscls 11 1,133.50 802.67
: 20,525.79 32,268.23
TOTAL ASSETS 44,443.63 44,204.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
TGauity
{a)  Equity Share Capital 12 20,000.00 20,000.00
{b}  Other Equity 13 (497.17) {100.00|
19,802.83 19,900.00
LIABTLITIES
1 HON CURRENT LIABILITIES
) Government Grants for Project
Expenditure : 14 21,641.65 21,180.30
{bj  Financial Liabilides . '
{i} Other Financial Liabilities 15 292.30 13240
€ Deferred Tax Liability 7 497.17 100,00
22,431.12 21,412.70
2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
{aj  Finmncial Liabilities
{i) Other Financial Liabilities 16 2,232.53 2,449.86
) Trade Payable
MSME
Qthers - - .
¢t Other Current Liabilities 17 143.62 T1.19
] Short Term Provigions . 18 © 40.46 -
] Uovernment Grants for A & O
Expenditure 19 93,06 370.24
' 2,509.68 2,891,29
e TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 44,443,563 4.4, 204.00
Significant Accounting Poi‘igjm?ﬂﬁ(‘! Netes on Financial [ 1 te 38
Statements . P
As per our report of Iver For and behail of the Board of Directors
For Gupta & Ashok
Chartered Accountants | <
i?t;? Reg. No. Q02254C : ¥
[Lokesh Kumar Jutav} [AntE
- i Chairman . b £ P,
03\) LYsid Y DIN. 08353862 . DIN.07G36828 | ],
CA. Ashok Agrawal .
Parmer
¥
M .No. 071274 [‘1 gb’v’:‘ %‘
[CA. na Gaur} e [C8,Anureg Kumar Saxens)
PLACE; Indore ' Chiel Financial Qfficer / 9‘7’ N Company Secretary
DATE: 26.09.2019 ' ; M No.4}pios S mesns
vpIN: 140712 THARAAB 5D 25 Cat fag;)
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INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMEN' LTD,
CIN :- U75100MP20165GC035528
Regd. Qff : Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, ML.P.
Webalte : morw.amartoityiadore.org, ph No, 07312536572 & mall 5 wmartcliyladors 1 &tigmall.com
PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDING AS ON 31 MARCH, 2019
T (lo Lukh)
For the year ended | For the vear ended’
Farticulars Note 31.03.2019  91,08,2018
Iacome
Revenue From Operations 20 169.34 73.19
QOther Income 21 4.441.84 1,085.59
Total income {A) 4,611.17 1,158.78
Hxpencesn
Employee benefit expense 22 139.60 104.22
Finance Costs 23 26.73 0.57-
Cther Expenses 24 743.25 924.79
Total expenses before Depreciation & Project
Exp (B) 209.58 1,029.59
Add:
a} Project Expenditure {Revenue nature) a5 3,278.85 141.03
h] Depreciation and amortization expense
i, Towards Administrative Assets ' 3 36.93 14,22
il, Towards Projects Assects 4 385.81 90.13
3,701,659 245.38 .
Profit/{loss) before tax [C=A-{B 0.00 {116.19}
Tax expense '
{1) Current tax - -
{2) Deferred tax 7 397.17 152.12
Total Tax (F} 397.17 152.12
Profit/|{Loss} for the year from continulng
opergtions(E-F} {397.17) {268.31)
Profit/(Loss} from discontinued operations . - -
Profit/(losg) for the period [397.17) {268.31)
Other comprehengive income 26
A [i) Ttemas that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss . -
B [ Items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss - 116.19
Total Other Comprehensive Income - 116.19
Total Comprehensive Income for the period :
{Comprising Profit {Loas).and Other .
Comprehensive Income for the perlod) (397.17) {152.12)
Eurnings per equity share (for continuing
operation): :
Basic {0.20} (0.08]
Diluted {0.20) {0.08)
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued
operatlon): - -
Sigrificant Accounting Policies and Notes on 1to 38
Financial Statements )
Ag per our report of Even Date ' For and behalf of the Board of Directors
For Gupta & Ashok Qk\y \
Chartered Accounsar
Firm Reg. MNo. 08225 e
M o flokesh Kumar Jatav] {Ashed _ Slngh] ¢\
Chairman © Bxcourive Dipedtort &l
. DIN, 08383862 PIN.OTG36828 | § :
Asholk Agrawal } ‘3 5;
Partner N .
W Ko. 0T1274 /} q:w ’
) o [ea. hina Gaur] % [CH.ATurag Kumar Saxena)
PLACE: Indore ' Chief Financial Officer § 171 % Company Sccretary
DATE: 26.09.2019 M No.43DBCS F.A11S
UhTM - 1387127 YANRDBNED2S LA ,»;/ .l

CAlext Excatsve %{r'e,g
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INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT L1D.
- CIN i~ U75100MP20168GCO35528
Rogd. Off 1 Bmart Clty Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, M.P.
' CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the yesr ended 31t March, 2019
¥ [In Lakhy
Particulars Yoar ended 313t March Year ended 31at March
2019 2018
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
_Profit { (Loss) before tax 0.00 {116.19)
Adjustments for:
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
Depreciation 8 Amortisation : 422,74 104.35
Provision for Gratuity .00 0.00
Provision for Leave Encashment 0.00 0.00
Miscellencous Balances Written off 0.00 .00
Interest Expense 0.00 0.00
Grant Transferred {(4,323.77) {1,085.59}
Other Comprehensive income 0.00 116.19 |
(3.901.03) (865.00
Dpera re Wo:
° ﬁmii:g Profit before Working Capital (3,901,08) (981.24)
Adjustments for:
Trade Receivables (32.48) {2.38)
Other financial assets (2.895.63) {736.84)
Other Bank Balances 4437.50 5696.00
Short Term Provisions 40,46 0.00
Inventories 0.00 0.00
Other Financial Liabilides {217.33) 114.16
Cther Current Assets 3469.17 . {674.69)
Trade Payables 0.00 .00
Crther Current Liabilities . T2.42 66.58
Other Non Current Liability 159.90 126.56
Movement in deposits 5034.02 0.00 4582.39
Ket Cash generated from / [used) in
Operating Activities{before tax} 1132.99 3601.15
Taxes {Paid) / Refund (net] 0.00 0.00
Net Cash geaerated from { fused) in o
Operating Activitles | 113299 3601.18
B Cash Flow from Investing Activitles
Interest Received 0.00
. {Purchase)/ Sale of T angible Assets {Net) {12,422.65) _ {9,608.20}
Movement in Loans and Advances 17.85 152.05) |
Net Cagh generated from / {used in} Investing
Activities {12,404.80) (9,660.26)
c MM&L
Qrant Received .00 10000.00
Interest received on Grant 707.94 2492.34
Repayment of Long Term Loans 0.00 ' 0,00
Repayment of Unpaid Matured Debentures .00 0.00
Movement in Long Term Provisicns 0.0G ] 0.00
Proceeds from Short Terns Loans 0.00 0.60
Neot Cash generated from [ {uaed in} -
Financing Activities é@‘“‘* 84sH 707.94 | 12492.34




Net increane / (decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equlivalents (A+B+C) (10,563.88) 6433,23
Opening Balsnce of Cash and Cash

Equivalents 14512.20 8078.97
Closing Balance of Cash and Cagh

Equivalents 3948.32 14512.20
Net Increage / {decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivalents {10,563.88) 6433.23

An per our report of Even Date

For Gupta & Ashok

Chartered Actourntants

Firm Reg, No. 002264C
D,

KI ,-‘g.li"‘"r i
e

LNa
CA. Ashok Agrawal
Partnier
N Ne, 071274

YD M --1507[11‘&1:\%,&%“5326.

PLACE! Indore
DATE: 26.09.201%

Notes: Opening and closing balance of cash and cash equivalents do not include FD

For and behaif of the Board of Directors

By

[Lokesh Kumar Jatav]
Cheirman
DIN, 03383862

&Y \om

[}

-[Cir!{achm Guur|

Chief Financial Oicer
M No“.i}fl(}ﬁﬂs

{Asheesh Slugh] |
Executive Director!
DIN, 07636828

[C8.Anurag Kumnr $axena]
Company Seeretary
F.8115

SFAN: PORLGHPa3 M
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STATEMENT OF CHARGES IN EQUITY

" Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March 2019
T {kn Lakb)

A, Equity Share Capital
Particulars . Amount |
Balance at April 1, 201 . 20,000.00 |
Changes in: equity share capital during the year ; -
Balance at March 31, 2019 20,000.00
B, Other Equity 3 {in Lakb)
Reserve & Surplus
Particulars Retalned Earnings Total
Balance at the beginning of reporting perjod 1st
Aprit, 2017 52.12 52.12
- Profit as per Profit & Loss Statement for the FY
2017-2018 (268.31) {268.31)
Other Comprehensive Income for the FY 2017-2018 116.19 116.19
Balance at the end of reporting period 31st March ’
2018 {100.00) {100.00)
Valuation adjustment-Deemed capital contribuytion - -
Profit as per Profit & Loss Statement for the FY '
2018-2016 {397.17) {357.17)
Other Comprehensive Income for the FY 2018-2019 -
Balance at the end of reporting pericd 31st March :
2019 £497.1 (497.17 |

Far and behalf of the Board of Directors

[Loketh Kumar Jatav] -[@%ﬁ;nm

Ag per our reporct of Even Date

For Gupta & Ashok

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No, 002254
A Cheirman Executive Director
: DIN, 08383862 DIN.OT6366828

S \
A Auhok Agrawal
Pariner C- . 2 )
¥ Fo. 0T1274 !y /

UDIN= fso.” 2'71{ ﬁp.p« ““3“5323 [CB.Muﬂx Kurar Saxena}
PLACE: Iadors ' Cornpany Sceretary
F.8115

DATE: 26.09.2019
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INDGRE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT LTD.

CIN :- U73100MP2016SGC035528
Regd, OfF ; Smart City Office, Nelhiru Parh Campng, Indore, M.P.

Sigoificant Accounting Policies

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Indore Smart City Development Limited {the "Company”) was incorporated in india on 11th March,
2016.[t is a Special Purpose Vehicle {SPV] created for the jmplementatien of the “Smarty City Mission”
at the Indore city, The SPV will plan, appraise, approve, release funds, implement, manage, operate,
monitor and evaluate the smart city development project as per the Misslon Statement & Guideline
issned by Ministry of Urban Development Government of India,

2. BABIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost hasis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair valtue:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting
standards (Ind AS), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also its
functional currency.

2.2 BUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a} Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE)

i)  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and
rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes
purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable ip bringing the assets to ifs
working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustiments arising from exchenge rate variations attributable to the assets,

i) Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoeiated with the item
will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. In the carrying amount of an item of
PPE, the cost of replacing the part of such an item is recognized when that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized
in accordance with the derecognition principles.

i) Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage

prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital

Work - in - Progress,

iv) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using straight Line method.
Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013. Each part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment with & cost that is
significant in relation to toial cost of the Machine is depreciated separately, if its nsefil ko is
different than the life of the Machine,

v} The residual values, useful lives and metheds of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

vi) Gains or losses arising from derccognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Btatement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised,

vii) Spare parts procured along with the Plant 8& Machinery or subsequently which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item. The carrying
amount of those spare parts that are replaced i derecoguized when no futur® economic benefits
are expected from their use or upon disposal. Other machinesy spares are treated as “stores &
spares” forming part of the inventory.

viii) That the cost of an ftem of property , plant & equipment ghall be recognised as an asset if and

only if il i3 probable that the future econemic bencfits nssociated with the item will flow to the
entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably




bl Leases

]

i)

i)

iv}

V)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of Lhe leage, transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessce. All other leases are classified as operating

CAST assets: Assets held under finance leages are initially recognised as assets of the Company

at thieir fuir value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet asa
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
s0 as to achicve a constant rate of interest on the remaining belance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly
attributable to gualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certajnty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease tcrm, the asset js
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss ona
straight-line - basis over the lease term except where another sysiematic basis is more
representative of ime pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

¢) Intangible asscts

i)

)

iif)

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and
rebates less accumulated amortization /deplation and impairment [oss, if any. Such cost includes
purchasc price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its
worldng condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a stparate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item

will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference

between the net dispesal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised '

d| Capital Work in Progress

i)

i}

i)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a projecy) is carried at cost under
Capital Work in Progress. Such costs comprises purchase price of asset including import duties
and non-refundable taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates and costs that are directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
eperating in the manner intended by management.

Cost directly attributable to projects under construction include costs of employee benefits,
expenditure in relation to survey and investigation activities of the projects, cost of site
preparation, initial delivery and handling charges, installation and assembly costs, professional
fees, expenditure on maintenance and up-gradation etc. of common public facilities, depreciation
on assets used in construction of project, interest during comstruction and other costs if
atiributable to construction of projects. Such costs are accumutated under “Capital works in
progress” and subsequenty allocated on sysiematic basis over major assets, other than land and
infrastructure facilities, on commissioning of projects. :

Capitat Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not have
control but the creation of which is essential principally for censtruction of the project is
capitalized and cerried under “Capital work in progress” and subscquently allocated on
systematic basis over major assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities, on
commissioning of projects, keeping in view the “attributability” and the “Unit of Measure”
concepts in lnd AS 16- *Property, Plant & Equipment”. Expenditure of such nature incurred after
completion of the project, is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

€} Finance Cost

i

i -

-\t other borrowing ¢osts are expensed in the period in which they oceur,

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency bhorrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an edjustment to the interest cost..Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takesa
substantial period of time to get ready for its intenided use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of the asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantdal period of time to get
Tnterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific grants pending their expenditure
on project assets is added to the grant itsclf,




1

L)

i

impairment of non-financial Rasets - property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

i} The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any
property, piant and equipment and intangible assets or group of assets, called Cash Generating
Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or
COU is estimated to determine the extent of impalrment, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. .

iit An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an agset’s
fair velue less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market asscssments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

iij The kmpairment loss recogniged in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and Commitments

ij Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) asa
resull of a past event, it is probable that en cutflow of resources embedying cconamic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Such provisions are determined based on management cstimate of the amount
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. When the Company expects some or
all of a provision to be reimbursed; the reimbursement is recognised as a standalone asset only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

i} 3fthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted wsing a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recoghised as a finance cost.
ifif Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of management. These are reviewed
at-each balance sheet date are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.
iv) Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the Anancial statements when inflow of
economic benefits is probable,
Income Taxes
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Taxis recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it rejates 1o items recognised in the other comprehensive
income or in eguity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
equity,
i) Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively

enacted at the Balance sheet date.

il Deferred tax .
Deferred tax is recogiised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
$abilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of

taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying
amount of deferred tax liabititics and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Employee Benefits Expense

8hort Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employes benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense durng the period when the employees

render the services.
i

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is & post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
ecificd contributions to a separate entity. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
wrds Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Pension Scheme. The Company’s contribution is




] &

i

I

Revenue recognition

Revenue from operailon is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated cost can be
estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial involvement with the goods,
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenuc from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed contraclual task

has been completed.

Tuterest income
Interest income from a fAnancial asset is recognised using effective interest rate (EfR) method.

Financial Intruments
) Financia) Assets
A,

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets and Liabilities are initialty recognized at fair value, Transaction costs that
are directly attributable fo the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilitles,
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial

recognition.

B, Subsequent measur¢ment
Fi ial asse ied at i st
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractuat
terms of the financial assct give rise on specified dates to tash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fipancial assets at fair vajue through gther comprehensive income [FYTQCIY

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCLIf it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cashk flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely puyments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss [FVTPL)

A financial asset not classified as either smortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

C. Impairment of flaracial assets
In accordance with Ind A8 109, the Company uses TExpected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for
evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at falr value through
profit and loss (FVTPL).
Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
« The 12-months expected ¢redit losses {expected credit losses that result from those default
events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting

date); or

o Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
defauit events over the life of the financial instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses
historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portlolio of trade receivables. At
every reparting date these historical default rales are reviewed and changes in the forward
looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where
there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full
lifetime ECL is used.

1) Financlal Liabilities

A, Initial recoguition and measurement .
All fingncial liabilitles are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly
atiributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss as finance cost,
B. Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying
amounts approxdmate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments




1} Opcrating Cycle
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification based on gperating cycle. )
An asset is treated as current when it is:
: a. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
I b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
i ¢. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
| . d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
; least twelve months after the reporting period

All oiher assets are classified as non-current.

A Hability is current when:

&. It is expected to be settied in normal operating cycle;

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current asscts end liabilities.

The company has ldentified tweive months as its operating cycle.

m) Farnings Per S8hare
Basic earmings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shuares outstanding during the peried. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the perod are adjusted for events of
benus issue; bonus element in a right issue to existing shareholders.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of ali dilutive potential equity stiares.

g} Statement of Cash Flows
i) Cash and Cash equivalents
For the purposec of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

i) Statement of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with the Indirect Method prescribed in the
relevant Accounting Standard.

o} Goverument Grants .
The company recoghises government grants only when therc. is resonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complicd with and the grants will be received. When the grant
relates to an expense ftem is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
srelated cost, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to en asset,
it is recognised as defferred revenue in the Balance Sheet and trapsferred te Profit & loss accounton
a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Non moenetary grant in the form of asset or other resourses is recognised at Nominai Value. Grant
related to income are preseated as part of Profit & Loss Account under other Income and related

expenses under their respective head

P} Investment Property
Property that is held for long term rental or for capital appreciation or both and that is not occupied
by the company , is classifed as invertment property.Investment property in initially measured at cost
but investment property acquired without consideration is measured at Nomindl Vakue,

2.3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparaton of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management o meke
.- judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
d disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported

g . M M . CE b e
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amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be retevant. Actual results may
differ from these cstimates under different assumptions and conditions. The estimates and underlying
assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the perfod of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and furore periods.

a] Depreclation [ amortisation and useful lives of property plant and equipment /-intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated
useful lives, after taking Into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated
usefut lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporling period, The usefut lives and residual
values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and talke into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

b} Provisions :
Provisions and liabilitics are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outllow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outfiow can
be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the lability requires the
application of judgment to exdsting facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of
changing facts and circumstances.

¢} Impainment of non-financiat assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an assct may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asget’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) fair value less costs of

disposal and its value in use. It ls determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not .

generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets.
Where the camrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, !
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks spacific to the asset, In detcrmining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
usecd. :

d) Impairment of financlal assets
The impairment provisions for financial asscts are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impainment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reparting period.

¢} Recognition of Assistance from Holding Company
The Facilities given by the Holding Company have been recognised and estimations have been made
in relation to the period of the assistance given, disocunting factor for such assistance and valuation of
the assistarice giverni. ' '

fi) Accounting of Long Term Security Deposits

Discounting factors while accounting for the Security Deposits have been made to bring them to their

present value,

g) Estimation of Economic Benefits flowing from the Property Plant and Equipments
Estimates for the future economic benefits have been made on the basis of various factors preveailing
as on the date of Financial Statements.

hy Financial asscts at falr value through profit or loas {FVTPL) .
FMV is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows at the end of the reporting
period at the rate at which mobilisation advance is usaually piven by the company i.c 10%
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INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT LTD.
CIN :- UT5100MP20168GC035528
Regd. Off : Smart Clty Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, M.P,
Notes snpoxed to and forming pert of Financlal Statemoents
Investmnent Proporticy ¥ {IvLakb)
As at As at

Particalars 31st March-2019 | 31st March-2018
{I) Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Balance
Addition during the year -

" Disposals during the year
Closing Balance
(i) Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Disposals during the year
Closing Balance

0.00001

0.00001

| ____ Net Carryiog Amount {I-X1)

0.0G001

{i] The MP Government has ajloted 16,413 Hectare lond at MOG line Indore 6n 25.09.2018 vide order No.F 10-45f2018/18-2

and the said piece of land has been transferred in the name of the company. The Company has recogniged the said land in its

books of accounts at nominal value ofRs, 1/-

(i} That the said land can be utilised only for redevelopment purpese as stated in Smart City Mission Staternent & Guideline.

Atpresent the land has only been alloted but conditions attached to it is not yet fulfilled.

{lll) The company has during the FY 2018-19 not generated any income from the gaid [nvestment Property, The Comnpany

intends to generate revenie [romi this tnvestment property through appreciation in vahie,

Other Noo Current Asact T (L Lelh)
Particulacs As ut Ax at

31st March-2019 | 31st March-2018
Present Value of Facilities Free of Cost as per Ind AS (IMC) 91.98 109.83

Total ©1,98 109.83

Deferred Tax Assets/{Liabilities} Z (In Lukb}
The Movement on the deferred tax account is as follows .
Particulars As ak Aa at

J1st Murch-2019 31ust March-2018
Deferred tax liability
Timing dilference on account of Depreciation 557.17 180,75
Deferred lax Asset . -
Timing Difference on account of See 35D . 33.04
Timimg Difference on account of IND AS adjustments © (0.00) 47.72
Carry Forwird Losses 60.01 .
Total Delerred Tux Assets - 60,01 80.75
Net Deferred 1ax Asset/(Liability) #97.17) [180.00}
At the ead of the year 497,17 100.60

s
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Component aof Deferred Tax Liabilitles/{Assets) T {In Lakh)
Perticulars ) As at Charge/{Credit} to Asat
Jlst Morch- | Statement of Profit
2018 & Losa 31ist Moarch-2019
Beferred Tax Assets/(Liabilitics) in relation to s
Depreciation Effact {180.75) 376.42 {557.17)
Carryforward of losses . (60.01) 60,01
Property Plani and Equipment - - -
Long term provisions - *
Short tertn pravisions - . ..
Amount admissible under section 350 of IT Act 33.04 33.04 -
Ind AS adjustments 47.72 47.72 {0.00)
Total {100,00} 397.17 (497.17}
The reconclliation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is aa follows: ¥ (In Lakty)
Particulars As at Ax at
3lat March-2019 31st March-2018
Profit/{loss) before tax 0 {116.19}
Incorne tax expense at tax rates applicable to individual entities 0 -
Add/{less) -
Depreciation Effect {376.42) {170.81)
Carryforward of lossea 60.01 -
Property Plant and Equipment -
Leng term previsions - -
Short tenmn provisions - -
Amount admissible under section 35D of IT Act (33.04) [Lon.
Ind AS adjustments (47.72} 29.70
Income tax expense reported [397.17) {152.12)
8 Cash and Cash Equivalents ¥ (T Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31st March-2019 | 31st March.2018
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
(i) Saving Accounts 3,948.32 14,512.06
{ii) Fixed Deposit 11,E56,50 - 15,594.00
Cash on hand - 0.14
13,104.82 30,106.20
9 Trade Reclevables 2 (fn Lakb)
Particulars As at As at
31st Mareh-2015 | 31st March-2018
Cash & Cash Equivelents
Trade Recievables congidered good - secured - -
Trade Recievables considered good - Unsecured 41.85 938
Trade Recievables which have significant increase in credit risk - .
Trade Recievables credit imperied - -
41.85 5,38
10 Finsncial Azgets - Other current asasts % (Lo Lakh)
Purticulars Asut Asat
31at March-2019 | 31st March-2018
Secured , Considered Good .
Security Deposit 3281 7.98
Governement Grant Recievable 3,800.00 -
Accrued [nterest on FDR 408,28 1,337.11
Accrued Interest on edvance to vendor 4.50 4.50
Advance to Employees 0.02 0.39

4245.¢ 1




16 Finaenecial Liabilities - Other Financial Linbilitles Z {In Lekh)
An &t
Particulars Mam:;:.t 2019 | March 31, 2018
Creditors for project expenditure 1,344.15 1,981.61
Creditors for Gther Expenditure 337.58 334.85
Security depesit withheld-Project 499.30 126.26
Becurity deposit withheld- Others 13.95 715
Amgurnt Bquivaient to Rayalty Withheld 2042
EMD Refundable 2.20
Performance Security 5.86 o
Total 2,232,53 2,449.86 |
17_Other Current Liabilities X {lu Lakh}
Partictlars An at Ax at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cominercial Tax - 1.32
TDS on GST 85.92 .
GST Payable .15 4.32
TOS Payable 26.88 6.61
EPF Employee cont L17 L46
ESIC Employee Cont 0.01 0.09
EPF Employer Cont 1.21 L4G
ESIC Employer Cont 0.04 0.26
Labour Cess 2119 5570
Professional fax 0.05 0.03
Total 143.62 71.19 |
18 Sbort Term Provisions T {Iu Lakh)
Particulars MuohA;ll:tzo 19 | sarenst, 2018
I'mojset Expenditure 40.40. -
Total 40,46 -
19 Cavernment Grants for A & O Expenditure ¥ {In Lakh}
An at As at
Purticulars March 31, 2019 | Masch 31, 2018
Opening Balance 37024
Grant Received for A&OE Expenditure 300.60
Less: Recognised in P&L Stalement to the extent of expenditure  777.17 93.06 370.24
93.06 370.24

Total

That as per mission Statement & Guideline issued by Ministry of Urban Development Gol, Government proposes to give
Rs.200 Crores to each smart city in ficst year and R, 100 Crores for next three years. That ISCDL has received Re.396 crares(

Rs.196 Cr from Gol & Rs.200 Cr from CoMP). which is only the Bratyear installment, That Gol has further sanctioned Rs 5,00

Cefor A&OE Expenditure vide letter dated 21.03.2019 and hence the same is recognised as grant,




INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT LTD, .
CiIN - U75100MP20165GC035528
Regd. Off : Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, M.P,
Notes pnnexed to and forming part of Finenciul Statements
20 Tevenuwe from operations T (In Lokh)
Year exnded Year ended .
Particulars _ | March 31, 2019 [ March 31, 2018
Advertisement Income 95.89 2044
0&M for Material Recovery 23.05 .
Otber Operating Reveaue : '
E~Procurement Fees 38.88 3328
Forfieture of EMD - 0.40
Interest from Vendors on mobilisation advance 10.66 10.09
Labour Cess Collection Charges recovered 0.86 0.56
Dismantle Electric Material - 3.41
Total . 169.34 73.19|
2% Other Income : ¥ (In Lakh)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Government Grants
8) Amount transterred from Admiristrative Grants T77.17 8549.43
b] Amount transferred from Project Grants
i} Grant utilised for Project Expenditure{ Revenue Nature)]-  19,52,81,601 -
interest Utilised for Project Expenditure [Revenue Nature)- 15.63,77,730 3,546.59 23116
Others
a) Security Deposit Stated at Fair Value 114.83
b) Free of Cost Assistance from IMC Recognised at Fair Value 2.18 -
¢ Other Income .06 -
| Total 4441.84 1,085.59
22 Employeo Benefits Expense . T {ln Lakh)
Purticulars Year ended Year enrded
Msarch 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Salaries & Wages 123.81 102.56
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 14.78 1.66
Maternity Benefit 1.01 .
Total 139.60 ) 104.22
23 Finunce Coat ¥ {In Lakh)
Particulars ' Year ended Yenr ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Bank Charges ' 0.16 0.00
Interest on Securdty Deposit] Unwinding) _ ) 26.57 0.57
Total 26,73 0.57
24 Other expensca T (Tn Lakk)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 | Mareh 31, 2018
‘Professional Charges ' . 2373 19.18
Office Expenscs 13.01 8.86
Statutory Audit fee 0.68 0.52
ROC Charges for increase in paid-up capital - - 9.64
Photocopy and Binding Charges ' 0.30 0.23
Advertising Expenses 147.78 83.12
Professional Charges Planning 25,89, 23.28
Professional Fees For Project Developnient ' - 69.70 107,49
| Project Management Consullanat o 311.53 611.18
| Rent of Premises 9.64 707
Electricity Expenses ’ 3.18 3.39
Llcctric Expenses( Shri Sai Baba) - 0,03
0.08 0.01
e o e B




L& Financial Liabitities - Other Financial Liabilitles % (1o Lakh)
As at As gt
| Fasticulasa Murch 31, 2619 | March 31, 2018
Crediters [or project expenditure 1,344.15 1,981.61
Creditors for Other Expenditure 337.58 334.85
Security deposit withheld-Project 499.30 126.26
Security deposit withheld- Others 13.95 7.15
Amount Equivalent to Royalty Withheld 29.49
EMD Refundable 220 -
Performance Security 586 .
Total 2,232,53 2,449.86 |

17_Other Current Liabilities ¥ {In Lakh}

N As at As nt
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Commercial "Fax - 1.32
TDS on GST 85.92 -
GST Payable 1.15 432
TDS Payable 26.88 6.61
EPF Employee coit 1.17 1.46
ESIC Employege Cont 0.0t 0.09
EPF Employer Cont 1.21 £.40
ESIC Employer Cout 0.04 0.26
Labour Cess 27.19 5570
Pmfessional fax 0.05 (.03

Total 143.62 71.19
18 Short Term Provisloos T (I Laki}
Aw at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Project Expendibure 40.46. -
Total 40.46 -
19 Covermment Grants for A & OF Expenmditure. ¥ (In Lakh)
As ut As ut

Particularas

March 31, 2019

Marck 31, 2018

Cpening Balance 370.24

Grant Received for A&OE Expenditure 500.00

[ess: Recognised in P&L Statement to the extent of expenditure  777.17 93.06 370.24
' 93.06 370.24

Total

That a8 per mission Statement & Guideline issued by Ministry of Urban Development Gol, Government proposea to give

Rs.200 Crores to cach smart city in first year and Rs. 100 Crores for next three years, Thai ISCDL haw received Rs.396 crores{

R5.196 Cr from Go!l & Rs. 200 Cr from GoMP}, which is only the Grstyear installment, That Gel has further sanctioned Re 5.0¢

Crlor AGGE Expenditure vide letter dated 21.05.2012 and hence the same iarecognised as grant.




CIN :- U735100MP20165GL035528

INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT LTD.

Regd. Off ; Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, M.P.
Notes unnexed to and forming part of Financial Statements

SEaaT fee

Revenue from operotions 2 (In Lakh)
Year ended Year ended
Particwlars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Sale of Service —
Advertisement Income 95.89 20.44
Q&M for Matarial Recovery 23.08 -
Qther Operating Revenue
E-Procurement Fecs 38.88 38.28
Forfieture of EMD : - 0.40
Interest from Vendors on mobilisation advance’ 10.66 10.09
Labour Cess Collection Charges recovered 0.86 0.56
Dismantle Electric Material - 3.41
Total 169.834 73.19{
21 Other fncome Z (In Lakh)
Yoar exded Year ended
Particulars Murch 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Government Grauts
g Amount fransferred {rom Administrative Grants 777.17 854.43
bj Amount transferred from Project Grants
i} Grant utilised for Project Expenditure( Revenue Nature)- 19,52,81,601
iinterest Utitised for Project Expenditure (Revenue Nature)-  15,93.77,730 3,546.59 231.16
Others
a] Security Deposit Stated at Fair Value 1:14.83
b} Free of Cost Asaistance frort IMC Recognised at Fair Value 3.18 -
¢} Other Income 0.06 -
Total 4,441.84 1,085.59
22 Employec Benefite Expense F{In Lakn}
Particulars Year ended Yeor ended
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Salarics & Wapes 123.81 102.56
Contribution ta Provident & Other Funds 14.78 1.66
Maternity Benefit 1.01 .
[ Total 135,60 104,22
23 Finance Cost ¥ (to Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Bank Charges 0.16 .00
Interest on Security Deposit] Unwinding} 26,57 0.57|
Total 26,73 0.57
24 Other oxpensca ¥ {lo Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
"Professional Charges 2373 19.18
Office Expenses 13.01 8.86
Statutory Audit fee 0.68 0.52
ROC Charges for increase in paid-up capital - 9,64
Photocopy and Binding Charges 0.30 0.23
Advertising Expenses 147.78 83.12
Professional Charges Planning 25.89, 23.28
Professional Fees For Project Development - 6970 107.49
| Project Management Consuitanat 311.53 61t.18
Rent of Premises 9.64 7.07
_ | Electricity Expenses . . 3.18 3.29
-~ Electric Expenses( Shri Sai Baba) - 0.03
0.08 0.01

o
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GST Interest 0.3 0.00
I ousikeeping 46,48 28.82
Iterset on TDS 2.19 Q.75
Legat Expenses 17.43 -
Participation Fees o Exkibitdon & Conlference 2.85 4.22
Prinling & Stationery Charges 2.58 3.04
Radinm Stiker for geela & Sukha Kachra - 0.38
Telephone 2,77 1.21
Travelling Charges 1289 1.88
Vehicle Hiring Charges 44,70 6.18
ROC Expenses .07 0.21
Professional Tax 0.03 0.03
Sitting Fees to tndependent dircctors 1.47 -
Consuitaney fees for HR policy 0.10 -
Diwali celebration Expence 0.70 -
Modification & Updation of ISCDL website 3.41 -
Services for topographical survey work of kukkt - 2.14
Studge Hygenitsion Expenses - 1.92
Total 743.25 924,79
Project Expenditure (Revenue nature) % (fn Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Conservation & Restoration of Chhatnbagh & Hariracholkar Chattri 218.18 145.03
City Beaulification work 245.65 -
Fixing of railing 507.77 -
Place Making & Visual Inipravement 613.03 -
Slum Beautification ) 1,045.65 -
Bioremediation/Biomining of LOD 247.70 .
Biomethnation Plant O&M 14.08 -
Health, 6.16 -
Consultancy for sludge Hygenation 6.1¢
Consultancy fees for Laxmi Bai Statue 0.58 -
Phetography of trenching ground & River front 1.82
Material for Lanfill Site Devguracdiya 1.7¢ -
Creating Otthosaic for River front i.88 .
O&M of Transfer station 282,52 .
Tree Census 72.07 .
Q&M of Compost Plant 14.26 .
Total 3,278.85 141.03

Other Comprehensive Income % (o Lakd)
Particulars Yeur ended Year ended

. March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
{A} Items that will not be reclagsified into profit or loss - -
Total (4) - -
{B) Items that will be reclaesified to profit or loss
(i} Free of Cost Assistance frotn IMC Recognised at Fair Value - 7154
(i Security Deposits gtated at Fair Value - 4464
Total [B) - 116.19

i) lncome pertains to free of cost assistance from IMC of Ry, 3.10/-Lakhs has been recognised directly to other income

account instead of other comprehensive income,

‘u
il) Security deposit stated at fair market value of Bs,114.83/- Lakhshas been recognised divectly to the otherincome account

instead of other comprehensive income,
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INDORE SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT LTE.
CIN :» U75100MP20165GC035528
Regd. Off ; Smart City Office, Nehru Park Campus, Indore, M.P,
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial statements

As per IND AS 19 "Employes benefits", the disclosures as defined are glven below:
Defined Contribution Pians
Contribution te Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under,

T fIn Lakh)
Parliculars 2018-1% 2017-18
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 14.66 1.40
Employer's Contribution to ESIC 0.42 0.26

Defined Benefit Plan

None of the employees have completed 5 years of Services and the maximum period of ¢ontract
of employment is of 3 years which has not been renewed till 31.03.2019 and hence the
Company has not recognised any Defined Benefit Plan Obligation and Expenses.

Payment to Auditors As: T {{n Lakn)

Particalars 2018-19 2H7-18

Anditors
Statutory Auditors Fees 0.50 0,50
Gst /Service Tax i 0.18 0.02
Certification and Consultation Fees -

Total 0.68 0.52_

¥ (hir Eokb)

EARNING PER SHARES (EPS) 2018-1% 2017-18

Net Profit alter Tax as

per statement of Profit

and Losgs attributable to (397.17) {152.12)
Equity Shareholders

Weighted Average

number of Equity

Shares used as 2,000.00 2,000.00
denominator for
calcnlating Basle EPS
Weighted Average
Potential Equity Shares
Total Weighted Average
number of Equity
Shares used as 2,000.00 2,000.00
denominator for )

calculating Dituted EPS .

Baslc Earnings Per Share {Rs.) ' {0.20) (0.08)
Diluted Earning Per Share {Rs.) {0.200 (0.08)
Face Value per Equity Share [Rs.) _ 10,00 10.00

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES _
As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

List of related parties where contro) exists and also related parties with whom transactions
have taken place and relationships:

Sr. No. | Nume of Related Party Relationship
i MPUDCL Holdinp Company
2 MC Having Substancial Interest
3 Shri Rohan Saxensa Chief Executive Office )
4 Shri Sandeep Soni Chiel Executive Office from 23.03.2019
9 C8 Anurag Kumar Saxena Company Secretary
6 CA Rachna Gaur Chief Finance Officer




{ij Transaction during the year with related parties: % (Iz Lakh)

Remuneration
tion 2017-2018
Sr. No. Related Party 2018.2019 Remuneratio
1 CS Anurag Kumar 7.39 7.04
Saxena
2 CA Rachna Gaur 8.50 4,25

{i#} Compensation of Key Management Personnel _
The remunteration of director and other member of Key Management personnel during the year
was as follows:-

2018-1% 2017-18

i Short-term benefits - -
Totat _ - -

31 CONTINGEN'T LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
( Contingent Liabilitiex :

A} Claims against the Company/disputed )
liabilities not ackmowledged as dues NIL NIL

(B} Guarantces
Qutstanding Guarantees fumnished to Banks .
and Financial Institutions including in NIL NIL
respect of Letters of Credits

{C} Other Money for which the Company is
contingently liable
{ij Liability in respect of bills discounted with NIL NIL
Banlks (including third party bills discounting)

(I} Commitments : :
(4} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to

be executed on 691.74 Crores 331,21 Crores

(B} Other Commitments - NIL NIL

32 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company adheres to a robust Capital Management framework which is underpinned by the
following guiding principles;

aj Maintain financial strength to attain AAA ratings domestically and investment grade ratings
internationally. )

b Ensure financiat fiexibility and diversify sources of financing and their matarities to minimize
liguidity risk while meeting investment requirements.

¢} Leverage optimally in ‘order to maximize shareholder returns while maintaining strength and
flexibility of the Balance sheet. )
This framework is adjusted bascd on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business
environment, financial market conditions -
and interest rates environment.

_The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as {ollows. T {In Laki)
' As at 31st  Asat 3lst
Particulars March,2019 March,2018
Non-Current Liabilities T 922,431,112 2141270

{Other than DTL)
Current maturities of . - -
Long Term debts

Gross Debt ) 22,431.12 21,412, 70
Cash and Cash 15,104.82 30,106,20
Equivalents - > .
Net, Debt {A) ) 7,326.29 8,693.49)
Total Equity (As per 19.502.83 16,900.00

Balance Sheet) (B)
Net Georing {A/B}

0.38 {0.44)

o N
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a3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
All financiai Instruments are iniﬁ&lly recognized and subsequently re-measured at fair value as
described below:
{a) Fair Value measurement hisrarchy: ¥ (Fn Lukh)

As at 31st  Asat 3lst
March,2019 Marck,2018

Particulars
Financlal Asscts
At Cost

Other Financial Assets 11,156.50 15,594.00
At Amortised Cost

Other Financial Assets 91.98 109.83
Financial Liabifities - -

Explanation to the fair value hierarchy

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each reporting date, Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly ransaction between market
participants at the measurernent date. All assets and liabilities for which fair vatue is measured or disclosed in

lowest level input that is significant to the fair valize measurement as a whole:

Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed
equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all

Level 1 equity instruments {including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the
closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded
bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the
Level 2 use¢ of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are ohservable, the instrument is included in

level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable mariket data, the instrument is
Level 3 included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration included
indevel 3.

Forelgn Currency Risk:
The Company does not have any dealing in any foreign currency. Hence the Company does not have any

exposure and is free of any Risk associates with Foreign Currency. Therc is no impact on the profit / Loss of
the Company on fluctuation of any foreign currency.

Interest Rate Risk;
The exposure of the company's financial Assets in Fixed Deposits would be impacted to interest rate changesat

theend of the reporting periad. The details are as follows

Interest Rate Exposure ' _ # (In Lakk)
Particulars - Asat 3Ist  As at 31st
March,2019 March,2018

Financial Asgsels
Long Term Floating
Long term Fixed Loan

- -

Fixed Depsgit With Bank Long Term 11,156.50 15,594.00
"Fotal 11,156.50 15,594.00
Impact on Interest Expenses for the year on 1% change in Interest rate
_Interest rate Sensitivity : #.(In Lakb)
Particulars As at 31st March,2019 As at 31st March,2018
Unp Move Down Move Up Move Down Move
Impact on Equity
. Impact on P & L 133.75 133.75 184.42 184
E\;\\ Total Impact 133.75 133.75 184.42 184.42

the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the




Credit Risgk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform

or pay the amounts due causing financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises mainly from
the advances given to Contractors for execution of work.

The company has a prudent and conservative process for managing its credit risk arising in the
course of its business activities. The credit ratings/market standing of the customers are

cvaluated on a regular basis.

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk arises from the Company’s inability to meet its cash flow commitments on time.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient stock of cash ., The Company
maintains adequate cash and cash equivalents ajongwith the need based credit Emits to meet

the liquidity needs.

Maturity Analysis for financial labilities .
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics

_As at 3% March 2019 _ TisLakiy

Particulars Yeeaa than One year|  1toBvears | More thanbl _ Total |

Non-derivative i

Security Deposits Refundable 513.25 289.94 135.82 939.00 [

Derivative (N.A)

As at 31 March 2018 . . )

Yarticulars Leas than One vesr | 1 yearato 5 yeard More than §i!  Totel 5

Non-dexivative

Security Deposits Refundable 133.40 175.95 1.65 31100

Derivative (N.A)

Operating Leases

The Compeny has not taken any assets on operating Lease. However Indore Municipal
corporation has provided its Building to the Company for its operations. Notional Rent
Expenses for the same have been provided for in the Profit & Loss as expenditure for the year.

34 The Company is primarily engaged in implementation of the “Smarty City Mission® at the Indore
city. Hence there are no separate reportable Segments.

35 Disclosures required under the Micro, Small & Medium Development Act, 2006
As at March 31st, 2019 and March 31st 2018, there is no outstanding dues to Micro, small
and medium Enterprise. There is no interest due or cuistanding on the same,

As at 31st  Asat 3lst
Particulars March,2019 March,2018

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon {to be shown separately) o 0
remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 0 0
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of

the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each

accounting year;

© the amount of inferest due and payable for the period of detay in making 0 0
payment (which have been pald but beyond the appeinted day during the year} but

without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each - 0 0
accounting year; and .
{¢) the amount of further intcrest remaining due and payable even in the : 0 0

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid
to the small enterprise, for the purpese of disallowance.of n deductible

N

o,

T




38 DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEE GIVEN COVERED U/S
186{4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013.

The Company has not given any Loans, not made any lovestments and has not given any
guaranteee which is covered under section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013.

37 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Board of Directors have recommended dividend of Rs Nil Per fully paid up equity share of
Rs.10/- each, aggregating Re, Nil Including Rs. Nil dividend distribution tax for the financial

year 2018-19,

38 APPROVAL O_l" FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on

As per our report of Even Date

For Gupta & Ashok
Chartered Accountants
Firen Reg. No. 002254C

CA., Ashok Agruwal
Partner
M .No. D71274
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PLACE: Indore
DATE: 26,09.2019

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
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[Lokesh Kumar Jatav]
Chaitman
DIN. 0B383862
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